Horizon 2020 Funding Starting from 1/1/2014

Proposal Submission Service User Manual

07/03/2014



Copyright Notice

© European Union, 1995-2014

Reproduction of this document and its content, in part or in whole, is authorised, provided the source is acknowledged, save where otherwise stated.

Where prior permission must be obtained for the reproduction or use of textual and multimedia information (sound, images, software, etc.), such permission shall cancel the above-mentioned general permission and shall clearly indicate any restrictions on use.

Third-party Trademarks and Copyright

All trademarks are the property of their respective owners, as follows.

- Windows® © Microsoft Corporation
- OS X® © Apple Inc.
- Adobe® Reader®, Adobe Acrobat® Adobe Livecycle® Adobe Pro® © Adobe Systems Inc.
- Internet Explorer® © Microsoft Corporation
- Firefox® © Mozilla foundation
- Safari® © Apple Inc.
- Opera® © Opera Software ASA
- Google® Chrome® © Google Inc.
- Java® © Oracle Corporation

Table of Contents

CHAPTER 1: INTRODUCTION	5
Document Scope and Structure	5
The Proposal Submission Process	6
Learning about the EC Grant Proposal Process	6
Proposal Submission Preparatory Checklist	6
Quick Steps to the Online Submission Process	6
Accessing Your Draft and Submitted Proposals	6
Contact and Support	6
CHAPTER 2: SUBMITTING YOUR PROPOSAL THROUGH THE ONLINE SUBMISSION SERVICE WIZARD	7
USER ACTION #1: Log In & Select Your Topic	7
USER ACTION #2: Create Draft of your Proposal	14
USER ACTION #3: Manage Your Related Parties	19
USER ACTION #4: Edit and Complete Proposal Draft Form, download Templates and complete al required information, Upload files, Validate and Submit your proposal	ll 24
The Action Buttons of the Wizard	25
4.1. FAMILIARIZING YOURSELF WITH THE WIZARD AND THE FORM	26
What You Need to Know about Completing the Form	30
4.2. EDITING AND COMPLETING THE FORM	31
4.3. FORM VALIDATION, SAVE AND CLOSE	32
4.4. PART B - DOWNLOADING AND COMPLETING THE ANNEX FORMS	33
4.5. UPLOADING THE ANNEX FORMS	34
4.6. VALIDATE AND SUBMIT YOUR APPLICATION	39
USER ACTION #5: The 'Proposal Submitted' Page	41
Revise (Re-edit) the Proposal	42
Download Submitted Proposal Package	42
Withdraw Submitted Proposal	42
PARTNER ACTIONS	42
Completing the forms	42
CHAPTER 3: REFERENCE GUIDE TO ROLES, SCREENS & ACCESS TO USER ACTIONS	43
Roles, Proposal Coordinator, Partner, Referee, Contact Person	43

The Timeline around the Deadline	43
The Online Submission Wizard: Screens and Access to User Actions	44
Wizard Step 3: CREATE DRAFT	45
Wizard Step 4: PARTIES	46
Wizard Step 5: EDIT PROPOSAL	47
Wizard Step 6: SUBMIT	48
The Participant Portal: Screens and Access to User Actions	49
Participant Portal: Before You Log In	49
Participant Portal: The ECAS Login Screen	50
Participant Portal: The ECAS Login Domain Selection Screen	51
Participant Portal: The HOW TO PARTICIPATE Page	52
Participant Portal: The BENEFICIARY REGISTER Page After Login	53
Participant Portal: The FUNDING OPPORTUNITIES Page	54
Participant Portal: The CALLS Search & Selection Page	55
Participant Portal: CALL Details - TOPIC Selection for a CALL	56
Participant Portal: Accessing the Submission Service for a Selected Topic	57
Participant Porta: MY ORGANISATIONS Page After Login	58
Participant Portal: The MY PROPOSALS Page After Login	59
APPENDIX A: COMPATIBILITY & TROUBLESHOOTING YOUR SYSTEM	
CONFIGURATION	60
Compatibility	60
Troubleshooting Your System Configuration	61
Troubleshooting Document Structure	67
APPENDIX B: ECAS REGISTRATION	70
GLOSSARY	73

CHAPTER 1: INTRODUCTION

The European Commission's Online Submission Service (hereinafter referred to as 'Submission Service') is designed to automate the documentation submission process for organisations and individuals interested in submitting proposals for funding under various EC program initiatives.

Document Scope and Structure

The purpose of the Proposal Submission Guide is to describe how beneficiaries can prepare and submit a Proposal using the Submission system. The document also provides additional reference information about the Service, as well as troubleshooting and configuration advice.

The following sections of information are available:

- CHAPTER 1: INTRODUCTION provides information and links to the relevant resources, a high level description of what you will need to prepare prior to your submission, a list of user actions, and contact and support information.
- CHAPTER 1: SUBMITTING YOUR PROPOSAL THROUGH THE ONLINE SUBMISSION SYSTEM provides step-by-step guidance on how to submit your information using the Commission's online system.
- CHAPTER 2: REFERENCE GUIDE TO SCREENS, ROLES & ACCESS TO USER ACTIONS describes the screens and the basic tasks you can perform using the system, as well as a description of the user roles in the system.
- APPENDIX A: TROUBLESHOOTING, COMPATIBILITY & CONFIGURATION ISSUES provides general information on common issues and solutions relating to system compatibility, configuration, and troubleshooting.
- APPENDIX B: REGISTRATION provides instructions on how to register a new account with the European Commission Authentication Service (ECAS).
- The *GLOSSARY* section contains descriptions of the most common specialised terms that you might come upon in this document.

The Proposal Submission Process

Learning about the EC Grant Proposal Process

It is very important that you familiarize yourself with the overall research and innovation grant process by first consulting the <u>Funding Guide</u>. There you will find a wealth of information including the <u>Horizon 2020 Online</u> <u>Manual</u>, numerous <u>Reference Documents</u>, the <u>Beneficiary Register</u>, a <u>Financial Capacity Self-Check</u>, as well as important information on the participation of <u>Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises (SMEs)</u>. Make sure you have read through all these resources prior to starting your Submission process.

Proposal Submission Preparatory Checklist

In preparation for your online application submission process, you must go through the following steps:

- 1. Decide on the funding opportunity that you want to apply for. <u>Funding Opportunities</u> are categorised as Work Programmes, Calls, Topics and Actions. Programmes are listed under the Horizon 2020 title.
- 2. Select your Partners. Most calls require a consortium of three organisations. Relevant information can be found on the <u>Participant Portal</u>.
- 3. Register as a user in <u>ECAS</u> (the European Commission Authentication Service). For instructions also see Appendix B at the end of this document.
- Your organisation and your Partner organisations must register in the <u>Beneficiary Register</u> through the <u>Participant Portal</u> (and consequently using the Unique Registration Facility - URF) and receive a Participant Identification Code (PIC). Additional information is available in the <u>URF Manual</u>.

Quick Steps to the Online Submission Process

The following basic user actions are involved in the online submission process. Refer to Chapter 1 for the detailed step-by-step procedures.

- 1. Login to the Participant Portal and Select your Topic
- 2. Create Draft of your proposal
- 3. Manage Your Related Parties
- 4. *Edit Proposal* draft form, download templates, complete all required information, upload files and submit your proposal
- 5. Following submission, you can re-edit, download or withdraw your proposal
- 6. Invite Partners to the process

Accessing Your Draft and Submitted Proposals

You can access your saved proposal drafts as well as your submitted proposals at any time, from the <u>My</u> <u>Proposals</u> page in the Participant Portal (you must be logged in). Alternatively, you can access your proposals

from the My Organisations page in the Participant Portal using the Proposals action button for the respective organisation.

Contact and Support

For questions on any aspect of grant applications and the EU Research Framework Programmes, including beneficiary registration and data updates, please refer to the *Horizon 2020 Helpdesk*.

For any IT-related problems that you might experience with the Submission system, please contact the <u>Research</u> <u>IT Helpdesk</u>

Once you have started the submission process, additional contact information is available at the bottom of the submission page.

CHAPTER 2: SUBMITTING YOUR PROPOSAL THROUGH THE ONLINE SUBMISSION SERVICE WIZARD

Once you have your ECAS username and password, your PIC and your Partners' PICs, you can start the submission process by logging in to the Participant Portal and using the European Commission's online Submission Service Wizard.

USER ACTION #1: Log In & Select Your Topic

To log in and select your call, perform the following steps:

1. Go to the Participant Portal: <u>http://ec.europa.eu/research/participants/portal/desktop/en/home.html</u>



2. Click **A** LOGIN. You will be prompted to authenticate through the ECAS login screen:

EUROPEAN COMMISS (ECAS) External EUROPA Authentication Service J Login	Contact Privacy Statement (English (en)
ECAS domain: (authenticates your identity on European Commission websites) Participants Portal requires you to authenticate	Login New password Sign Up Help Login Not registered vet Is the selected domain correct? External Chance.it Username or e-mail address Password More options Login Lost your password? Required fields Or log in with your Token
Last update: 07/01/2014 (3.6.	2.1-hum) 15 ms 🔺 Top

- 3. Make sure that the domain shown is **External** as shown in the visual example above.
- 4. If this is not the case, click the [Change it] link.
- 5. In the domain selection screen that opens, select the **External** option, as indicated in the visual example below:

		Contact	Privacy Statement (English (en)
	EUROPEAN COMMISS (ECAS)	SION AUTHENTICAT	ION SERVICE
Commission	European Commission		
ntraComm > Authentication Service > Whe	re Are You From?		
Where are you fro	m?		
Welcome to the European Commis	sion Authentication Service (ECAS).		
Choose the institution or body for "W+7" if you have a special exten	which you want to log in. Choose "Ext nal account composed of w and 7 digit	ernal" if you don't work for a European s.	n institution or body. Choose
If you aren't sure, select the "I do	n't know?" option for help.		
		Æ	\mathcal{P}
E-	-	A	7
European Commission,	DMMISSION Executive Agencies.	Partners, Resea	rnal rchers, Citizens.
11/		C	
W	7		9
I have an accoun Special extern	t w + 7 digits. al accounts.	I don't More information	know? about this screen.
show all Institutions Regulatory /	Agencies Joint Undertakings Other	I	
	n n	···	_ []
Agency for the Cooperation		Close Shu	
Agency for the Cooperation of	ARTEKIS Artemis Joint Undertaking	Clean Sky Joint Undertaking	Committee of the Regions
Energy Regulators			

The system will return you to the ECAS login screen.

- 6. In the ECAS login screen (as shown in step 2 above), provide your ECAS user name and password to login to the online Submission Service.
- 7. Once logged in, you will need to select the Call Topic for which you will submit your proposal. (Note: A Programme comprises many Calls and each Call can have one or more Topics. A submitted proposal is always for one Topic.)

To find and select a Call Topic, click on Funding Opportunities:



8. Scroll through the list of Work Programmes listed under the title Horizon 2020.

Horizon 2020	
Excellent Science European Research Council Future and Emerging Technologies Marie Sklodowska-Curie actions Research infrastructures Industrial Leadership Leadership Leadership in enabling and industrial technologies(LEIT) Access to risk finance Innovation in SMEs Filter a call FILTER Filters only programme and call titles and IDs, for extended search go to the Search Topics	Type Proposal Tender Status Open Closed Forthcoming

You filter the results list in the following ways:

a. To sort the results by type and/or status, select from the respective options on the right-hand side of the filtering panel

- b. To search by a key word, type a relevant word in the "Filter a call" field to search by, and click
- 9. Check the box for the Programme of your preference and you will then see its respective Calls appear underneath:

Excellent Science		Туре
European Research Council		Proposal
Future and Emerging Technologies		Tender
Marie Sklodowska-Curie actions		Status
Research infrastructures		Open
Deadership in enabling and industrial to	chnologies(LEIT)	Closed
Access to risk finance		 Forthcoming
Innovation in SMEs		
Filter a call Filters only programme and call titles an	FILTER IDs, for extended search go to the Search To	ppics page.
Filter a call Filters only programme and call titles an Fort by O Title O Call Id	FILTER I IDs, for extended search go to the Search To Publication Date O Dear	opics page. dline Date
Filter a call Filters only programme and call titles an ort by Title Call Id xcellent Science	FILTER IDs, for extended search go to the Search To Publication Date Dear Excellent Science Colls for amountain for EBC Dearf of	dline Date Excellent Science Coll for approach for EBC Starting Gra
Filter a call Filters only programme and call titles an ort by Title Call Id xcellent Science all for proposals for ERC Consolidator rant	FILTER IDs, for extended search go to the Search To Publication Date Dear Excellent Science Calls for proposals for ERC Proof of Concept Grant	dline Date Excellent Science Call for proposals for ERC Starting Gra
Filter a call Filters only programme and call titles an iort by Title Call Id ixcellent Science Call for proposals for ERC Consolidator irant iRC-2014-CoG	FILTER IDs, for extended search go to the Search To Publication Date Dear Excellent Science Calls for proposals for ERC Proof of Concept Grant ERC-2014-PoC	dline Date Excellent Science Call for proposals for ERC Starting Gra ERC-2014-STG

10. Click on the *Call* of your interest to open the *Call Summary*, *Call Documents*, *Get Support* and *Subscribe to Notifications* tab pages for that Call.

Note: At this point you are expected to have familiarised yourself with the information on these pages as part of the preparation phase. The visual examples below show how these screens look like:

L							
L	CALL FUR PROP	USALS FUR	ERCCONSOL				
L	ERC-2014-CoG						
L	Publication date	2013-12-11	Deadline Date	2014-05-20 +17:00:00 (Brussels local time)			
L	Budget	€/12,588,/2/	Main Pillar	Excellent Science			
L	Status	Open	UJ reference	OJ C361/9 of 11 December 2013			
L							
ſ	all description	documente	Cot support	ubscribe to Netifications			
Ľ	can description Can	documents	Get support 3	abscribe to Notifications			
Ca	all summary						
-	in Summary						
E	RC Consolidator Gran	its are designed	to support excelle	ent Principal Investigators at the career stage at which they			
m	ay still be consolidating	their own indep	endent research t	eam or programme. This action is open to researchers of			
ar	iy nationality who inten	d to conduct the	ir research activity	in any Member State or Associated Country.			
-				4 benche units and the entire distribution of the set 0.			
10	e ERC's frontier resear	rch grants operation	te on a bottom-up	basis without predetermined priorities. The call			
	KC-2014-COG CONSIST	s of one call wi	ith a single dead	anne apprying to each of the three main research domains:			
	Physical Sciences & End	gineering (Panels	: PE1 - PE10),				
•	Life Sciences (Panels: L	S1 - LS9),					
•	Social Sciences & Huma	anities (Panels: S	SH1 - SH6).				
	• Social Suchces & Humanities (Panels, SH1 - Sh0).						
Th	The deadline for all domains of this call is 20 May 2014, 17:00:00 (Brussels local time).						
Ir	The budget indicated above is the total budget covering all domains .						
PL	Please note that the document 'Information for applicants to the Starting and Consolidator Grant 2014 calls' is now						
av	Please note that the document: Information for applicants to the starting and Consolidator Grant 2014 calls is now						
a	available in February.						
Ca	all updates						
	2014-02-19	09.46.44					
•	2014-02-15	05.40.44					
	The submission se	ssion is now av	ailable for: ERC-	CoG-2014(ERC-COG)			
To	pics and submission	service					
	ERC-CoG-2014: ERC	Consolidator Gra	int				
_							
	CALL FOR PROPOSALS	FOR ERC CONS	LIDATOR GRANT				
	FPC-2014-CoG						
	Publication date	2013-12-11	Deadline Date	2014-05-20 +17:00:00 (Brussels local time)			
	Budget	€712,588,727	Main Pillar	Excellent Science			
	Status	Open	OJ reference	OJ C361/9 of 11 December 2013			

Call documents

Legal basis - Specific Programme H2020 en Legal basis - Framework Programme H2020 en Legal basis - Rules for Participation en

ERC documents - ERC Work Programme en ERC documents - ERC rules for submission and evaluation en

Information for applicants to the Starting and Consolidator Grant 2014 calls en

Get support Subscribe to Notifications

Download all documents
 (N with the control of the control

Call description

	ALS FUR ERC CUNS	OLIDATOR GRAN	1				
ERC-2014-CoG							
Publication date Budget Status	2013-12-11 C712,588,727 Open	Deadline Date Main Pillar OJ reference	2014-05-20 +17:00:00 (Brussels local time) Excellent Science OJ C361/9 of 11 December 2013				
Call description Call documents Get support Subscribe to Notifications National Contact Points (NCP) – contact your NCP for further assistance.							
	I – ask questions about	any aspect or Europe	an research in general and the EU Research Framework Programmes in				
particular.							
T Helpdesk – contact the submission of proposals, et	Participant Portal IT hel c.	pdesk for questions s	uch as forgotten passwords, access rights and roles, technical aspects of				
THelpdesk – contact the ubmission of proposals, et thics – to ensure complia	Participant Portal IT hel c. nce with ethical issues, f	pdesk for questions s further information is	available on the Participant Portal and on the Science and Society Portal.				
T Helpdesk – contact the ubmission of proposals, et thics – to ensure complia	Participant Portal IT hel c. nce with ethical issues, f issists you on intellectua	pdesk for questions s further information is al property issues.	such as forgotten passwords, access rights and roles, technical aspects of available on the Participant Portal and on the Science and Society Portal.				
T Helpdesk – contact the ubmission of proposals, et thics – to ensure complia uropean IPR Helpdesk he European Charter fo	Participant Portal IT hel c. nce with ethical issues, f issists you on intellectue r Researchers and the	pdesk for questions s further information is al property issues. • Code of Conduct fo	such as forgotten passwords, access rights and roles, technical aspects of available on the Participant Portal and on the Science and Society Portal.				

Budget C712,588,727 Main Pillar Excellent Science Status Oren OJ reference OJ C361/9 of 11 Decen	(orusses local time)
Status OJ reference OJ C361/9 of 11 Decen	
	iber 2013
il description Call documents Get support Subscribe to Notifications	

11. At the bottom of the *Call Description* tab, you will see the **Topics and submission service**.

RES	EARCH & INNOVATI	(A-Z) Sitemap About this site Contact Legal Notice Englis	h 🕶
Commission Parti	cipant Portal		
European Commission > Research & Innovati	on > Participant Portal > Opportunities		
MY AREA HOME FUNDING OPPORTUNI	TIES HOW TO PARTICIPATE EXPE	ERTS SUPPORT *	EV 🔹
My Organisation(s)			
My Proposal(s)	DIOTECHNOLOGY		
My Project(s)	BIOIECHNOLOGY		
My Notification(s)	H2020-LEIT-BIO-2015-1	Sub call of: H2020-BIOTEC-2014-2015	1
My Expert Area	Publication date 2013-12-11	Stage 2 2015-02-24 +17:00:00 (Brussels local time) Stage 2 2015-06-11 +17:00:00 (Brussels local time)	
	Budget €29,600,000	Main Pillar Industrial Leadership	
Horizon 2020	Status Open	OJ reference OJ C361 of 11 December 2013	
Calls			
Search Topics			
Call Updates 🔊			
Other EU Programmes 2014-2020 Research Fund for Coal & Steel COSME	Call updates • 2014-01-10 17:07:47		
Srd Health Programme	The Part 5ii. Nanotechnologies, Biotechnology of the Horizon 20 documents in the Information P	, Advanced materials, Advanced manufacturing and processing, 020 Work Programme (2014-2015) has been uploaded among the Package.	
FP7 & CIP Programmes 2007-2013			
Calls 🔕	Topics and submission service		
Call Updates 🔊	 BIOTEC-2-2015: New bioinformatics BIOTEC-6-2015: Metagenomics as in 	is approaches in service of biotechnology innovation driver	
Other Funding Opportunities			
		HORIZON 2020 RESEARCH ON EUROPA CORDIS	OLAF
	© European (Communities	

Click on the topic that you want to submit a proposal for, then click on the Submission Service tab.

ERC-2014-C06			
Publication date Total Call Budget	2013-12-11 €712,588,727	Deadline Date Main Pillar	2014-05-20 17:00:00 (Brussels local time) Excellent Science
Status	Open	OJ reference	OJ C361/9 of 11 December 2013
Topic: ERC Cons	olidator Grant	:	ERC-CoG-2014
aic Description T	nic Conditions & I	Documente Su	hmission Service
	pic conditions & i	Jocuments	
access the Electronic posal from the list be	Submission Servic low. You will then	e of the call, pleas be linked to the co	e select the type of action that is most relevant to your rrect entry point.

12. Select the *Action* from the drop down menu (usually there is just one Action) and then click on the **START SUBMISSION** button to go to step 2.

USER ACTION #2: Create Draft of your Proposal

You are now in the online submission service wizard.

Perform the following steps:

1. Enter either your organisation's PIC, or its name, or select from a previously associated organisation. If you have the entire PIC number you can avoid the search process.

LOGIN FUNDING SCHEME	CREATE DRAFT	PARTIES	EDIT PROPOSAL	SUBMIT
Step 3 Create a Draft Proposal H2020-EUJ-2014	Create a Draft Proposal Please enter the following inform with a star (*) are mandatory. Your organisation	ation to create a draft pro	oposal. Please note that fields	marked
EUJ-1-2014 EUJ-1-2014 RIA THU April 2014 17:00:00 Brussels Local Time 44 days left until closure	PIC* PIC* PIC* PIC* PIC: 949682381 Sciant Associates Ltd. 3 Ounay Str Sofia, BG VAT: BG0123456	name* 😧	ick to select.	
Configuration OK You're using Firefox 17 on Windows. Adobe Reader (version 11,0,5,3) is installed. For more information, please consult the User Guide.	Your Role Please indicate your role in this Main contact Contact person	proposal	Search for your organisation F	
	Your Proposal Please choose an acronym for y section of the submission form F Acronym* Short Summary (max. 2000 characters) Character count:	our proposal. It will appe Part A and can also be up	ear also in the "General Informa odated there. Please restrict acronym to latin ch	ation" naracters only .:i
cancel 🛞 Vers	ion: 20140206-1527 - Service Desk: DIGIT	-EFP7-SEP-SUPPORT@ec.eu	ropa.eu (+32 (2) 29 92222)	next > >

2. Once you enter the PIC number you will notice that the name field is automatically populated and the address is shown in blue highlight, as indicated on the visual example below.

		CREATE DRAFT	PARTIES	EDIT PROPOSAL	SUBMIT
Step 3 Create a Draft H2020-EUJ-2014	Proposal	Create a Draft Proposal Please enter the following information star (*) are mandatory.	on to create a draft prop	osal. Please note that fields marke	d with a
EUJ-1-2014 EUJ-1-2014 ERIA THU April 2014 17 10 Brussels Loc 49 days left until Configuration O	7:00:00 cal Time I closure	Your organisation PIC* 95644445 Short Baird Consulting SCS 95644444 Organisations you have been prev PIC: 956444445 Baird Consulting SCS Vieille rue du Moulin-Rouge 20 Uode, BE	name* 😨 5 Vieille rue du Moulin-Rou riously associated with. C	ige 20 Uccle, BE VAT: Click to select.	
You're using F Windows. Ad (version 11,0,1 installed.	Firefox 17 on lobe Reader 5,3) is	Your Role		Search for your organisation Pl	C search
For more information, please consult the User Guide.	Please indicate your role in this pro Main contact Contact person	posal			
		Your Proposal Please choose an acronym for you	ur proposal. It will appea	r also in the "General Information" s	section of
		the submission form Part A and ca Acronym* Short Summary (max. 2000 characters)* Character count:	in also be updated there	Please restrict acronym to latin cha	aracters
					next > >
cancel 🛞	Vers	ion: 20140206-1527 - Service Desk: DIGIT-	EFP7-SEP-SUPPORT@ec.e	europa.eu (+32 (2) 29 92222)	

3. Select your role – Main contact or Contact person:

Your Role						
Please indicate your role in this prop	osal					
 Main contact Contact person 						
Your Proposal						
Please choose an acronym for your the submission form Part A and can	proposal. It will appear als also be updated there.	so in the "General Information" section of				
Acronym*	RSW	Please restrict acronym to latin characters only				
Short Summary (max. 2000 characters)* Character count: 7						
		next > >				

Note: For more information about roles in the system, see section *Roles: Proposal Coordinator, Partner, Referee, Contact Person* further in this document.

- 4. Fill in the **Acronym** field.
- 5. Fill in the **Summary** field.



7. You will be presented with the following **Disclaimer** – click accept to accept it and proceed, or

decline to decline it and cancel the proposal submission.

Submission and Evaluation of Proposals Assent Disclaimer

By pressing the following button, you accept the terms and conditions of usage of this site and more specifically :

Proposal pre-registration data

1. Information used for the pre-registration and creation of a draft proposal: Call, topic, type of action; Participant Identification (PIC) code of your Organisation, Acronym, Short Summary, Panels and Keywords. (Step3) and the list of participating organisations (Step4) - can be used by the services in charge for the planning of evaluations.

2. Short Summary describes briefly the purpose of the proposal with a maximum of 2,000 characters. Entering at least keywords will help the services in the planning of the evaluations. Coordinators may choose to enter 'xxx' at this stage should they prefer not disclosing any data. The 'Short summary' information is then copied to the "Abstract" field in the administrative form and can be modified there.

If you do not wish any of your pre-registration data to be available to the European Commission/service in charge prior to call closure then please send an email to the Participant Portal Service Desk (address available at the foot of the screen and in the User Guide).

Part B

3. File format: For the Technical Annex (part B) you must use exclusively PDF ("portable document format", compatible with Adobe Acrobat version 5 or higher, with embedded fonts). Annexes might have an obligatory page limit. Please check for the number and type of mandatory or optional annexes for the call in the relevant call documentation. Annexes with excess pages where page limit applies, will receive a watermark upon upload to the system. Users will receive a warning when trying to submit an annex with excess pages.

4. **Time constraints:** Preparation and uploading of the PDF formatted technical annex may take some time. You should ensure that this has been completed in time, well before the call closure deadline.

Submission

5. In order to be made available for evaluation, proposals must be submitted prior to the call closure deadline. Likewise, modifications to proposals or uploaded attachments are also required to be submitted prior to the call closure deadline or they will not be taken into account. Proposals may be submitted or withdrawn at any time prior to the call closure deadline. There is only ever one version of a submitted proposal, as submission over-writes the previous version.

Personal Data

6. We will process personal data in accordance with Regulation No 45/2001 and according to the "notifications of the processing operations" to the Data Protection Officer (DPO) of the Commission/Agency (publicly accessible in the DPO register). Read more on the Legal Notice of the Participant Portal.

"*Regulation (EC) No 45/2001* of the European Parliament and of the Council of 18 December 2000 on the protection of individuals with regard to the processing of personal data by the Community institutions and bodies and on the free movement of such data (OJ L 8, 12.01.2001, p. 1).



8. You will receive a message on your screen that your draft proposal has been created. You will also receive a confirmation email.

Draft proposal Creative1 created	×
Dear	
You have successfully created draft proposal Creative1 for the call NCP_IA .	
You can continue editing your proposal now or access it at a later time (before the deadline 2014-04-23 17:00:00 Brussels Local Time) from <u>Participant Portal</u> by accessing the <u>My</u> <u>Proposals</u> tab (https://ec.europa.eu/research/participants/portal/desktop/en/proposals/index.html).	
An email containing this information has been sent to the email address	
(which is associated with your ECAS	
account	
Continue with this proposal Go to My Proposals	li.

9. Click Continue with this proposal to proceed to the next step.

To postpone this action for a later time and return to your list of proposals in the Participant Portal, click Go to My Proposals

USER ACTION #3: Manage Your Related Parties

1. You will be taken to Step 4 - Manage your Related Parties, as shown in the visual example below:



2. The system will advise you of the *Consortium Eligibility* requirements for the minimum number of participants.



Note: Before you can invite a Partner, they must have an account with the European Commission (ECAS) and a PIC (see the *Submission Preparatory Checklist* section above).

3. Click Add Partner and a new screen will open, as shown in the visual example below:



4. Enter your Partner's name in the search field and click search. You will be presented with the choices that match the name in your search field:

Search for an organisation		
Please enter the PIC of the organisation name (e.g. "O: country/city usually leads to organisation in internationa	organisation. If you do not kr xford" or "University of Oxforo o better results. You may also I format (e.g. "GB123456789'	ow it, you may enter a (complete or partial) I"). Entering additional information like search based on VAT number of the ')
test		search clear cancel
Search results for test		
TEST REGISTRATION	TEST	SZKOLA TEST_test
TEST 1 TEST, DK	TEST TEST, DE	Motowska 43a Warszawa, PL
PIC 998983892 use	PIC 947464088 use	PIC 949101060 use
Türbülans Nametica	test test	test
Test Test Test vTest Ankara, TR	street 40 leuven, BE	test test, ES
PIC 948955269 use	PIC 949767935 use	PIC 953568589 use
test-NA-2	Test	Test GW
Mokotowska Warszawa, PL	test 1 TEST, NL	142 Test Street Colchester, UK
PIC 947717646 use	PIC 947344002 use	PIC 947996133 use
More results were found. Ye	ou can:	
 refine your search above view the complete search i 	results here	

- 5. Once you find your Partner organisation, click the use button available for this organisation and the Add Contact window will open up
- 6. Click on the question mark on the window to learn about the rules

FUNDING	Add contact		× ROPOSAL SI
en 4	ÎTEST		
age Your Related	Please enter	the contact name and details:	s of your proposal. Only
H2020-EUJ-2014	Access rights	Participant contact (full access)	s" button.
Lazaros Bountouroglou	Last Name *		<u>í</u>
 Add partner For the prima pushed into t In the forms The email add email invitation You cannot che provide and a possible If they don't created and a possible 	nry coordinator co he administrative it is read only, yo dress is mandato on nange the email a e contact if they have an ECAS ac an email sent to t	ontact and the first participant contact, the info e forms ou must return here if you wish to edit it (press ry; it is used to both grant access via the ECAS address – please delete the contact and re-add have an existing ECAS account and use the co count then use the email they supply to you, a the contact with details on how to validate	* have rmation supplied here is "back" on Step 5) S system and to send an if necessary rresponding email where n ECAS account will be

7. Select the project role of the Partner Contact:

ITEST		
Please enter th	e contact name and details: 🔋	
Project Role	/ Main contact	
Access rights	Contact person (full access) \$	
First Name *		
Last Name *		
Email Address *		
* required field		

8. Select the access rights that you want to grant to your Partner contact. Only the person assigned the main contact role and full access rights can submit an application.

ITEST	
Please enter	the contact name and details: 📀
Project Role	Main contact +
Access rights	✓ Participant contact (full access)
First Name *	Team member (read-only access)
Last Name *	
Email Address *	ĸ
* required field	

9. Fill in the fields and click OK

Add contact		>
TEST		
Please enter th	ne contact name and details: 😨	
Project Role	Main contact 🔹	
Access rights	Participant contact (full access)	
First Name *	tester	
Last Name *	tester	
Email Address *	tester@tester.com	
* required field		

10. You will see the second contact appear in the Partner section

3 A Partner	Contact 🖸 😨 🗙
	test test - Main contact
TEST TEST, TEST TEST, DE PIC: 947464088	

Repeat the same steps for the remaining Partner organisations.

You can perform the following actions for an existing partner company using the buttons described below:



1. **Z** Delete participant

Click this button to delete any participant except the coordinator.

2. **Partner information**

Click this button to see more information about the partner company.

3. **Add contact**

Click this button to add a new contact to an existing partner company.

4. Resend invite to collaborate

Click this button to re-send the invitation to collaborate in the proposal.

5. **Edit existing contact**

Click this button to edit an existing contact by clicking the pencil icon (5).

6. Belete existing contact

Click this button to delete an existing contact.

7. Ill Contact information

Click this button to see more information about the company contact. The name field will expand to show the email address and phone number of the contact.

Vou're using Firefox 17 on Windows. Adobe Reader (version 11.0.5.3) is	Configuration OK 🛛 💙	
For more information, please	You're using Firefox 17 on Windows. Adobe Reader (version 11,0,5,3) is installed. For more information, please	

Note: At this point, the system will automatically generate emails to all the Partner contacts. The emails include all relevant information and links to access the proposal. The Access rights granted to each Partner contact will determine the level of access that the contact will have.

USER ACTION #4: Edit and Complete Proposal Draft Form, download Templates and complete all required information, Upload files, Validate and Submit your proposal

This step is the core of the submission process. You can come to this step by either clicking on stated above, or, to access a previously saved draft proposal form, go to **MY AREA > My Proposal(s)** page in

the Participant Portal (you must be logged in) and click the ^{ED} button in the **ACTIONS** column for the respective proposal, as shown in the visual example below:

	(A-Z) Sitemap About this site	Contact Legal Notice English 💌
RE	SEARCH & INNOVATION	
Commission Par	ticipant Portal	
European Commission > Research & Innova	tion > Participant Portal > My Proposals	
MY AREA HOME FUNDING OPPORTUN	ITIES HOW TO PARTICIPATE EXPERTS SUPPORT -	🛔 IVAN TERZIEV 🔻
My Organisation(s)		
My Proposal(s)	My Proposals	H2020 ONLINE MANUAL
My Project(s)	This page provides a list of all proposals relating to you as a participant, as follows:	
My Notification(s)		
My Expert Area	 proposals you have initiated or submitted as a Coordinator/Principal Investigator, o proposals you have contributed to as a project participant 	r
	You can view, edit or download your draft or submitted proposals, depending on the proof the relevant call. To start preparing a new proposal, go to Funding Opportunities, to the page of the call for, and enter the electronic submission system. LEGEND ED Edit Draft VD View Draft VS View Submitted DE Delete Proposal Show 10 entries PROGRAM CALL O FUNDING PROPOSAL SCHEME DE DED ED E	oposal status and the deadline or topic that you want to apply Search G TIME ACTIONS
	H2020 H2020- RIA SEP-2101424 SA Draft EUJ-2014 22	
	Showing 1 to 1 of 1 entries.	- PREVIOUS 1 NEXT ->
	HORIZON 2020 RESEARC	H ON EUROPA CORDIS OLAF
	© European Communities	

You have now opened Step 5 of the online submission wizard:

LOGIN FUN		CREATE DRAFT	PARTIES	EDIT PROPOSAL		
Step 5		Edit Proposals' Forms		·		
Edit Proposal		In this step you can edit the admini	strative forms and upload	l the proposal itself. 📀		
		WARNING: This proposal contain	s changes that have not y	et been submitted		
		Administrative Forms				
ICT-02-2014		Edit will open the forms in Adobe	Reader. 🕑			
EIA		edit	forms view history	print preview		
April 2014 17:00:00 23 Brussels Local Tim	D ne	Part B and Annexes				
65 days left until closu	re	In this section you may upload the requested attachments.	e technical annex of the pr	roposal (in PDF format only) an	d any ot	her
Acronym ID PIC C	Contact	download templates				
tst1		Technical Annex Section up	load		۲	0
Configuration OK		Technical Annex Section up	load		۲	•
You're using Chrom Windows. Adobe R (version 11,0,5,0) is installed.	e 24 on Reader					
For more information consult the User Gu	n, please uide.					
				<< Step 4 - Parties va	alidate	submit
done 🛞	Versi	on: 20140122-1403 - Service Desk: DIGIT-	EFP7-SEP-SUPPORT@ec.eu	ropa.eu (+32 (2) 29 92222)		

The Action Buttons of the Wizard

The action buttons available on the screen are described in the table below

Button	Description
edit forms	Click to open the PDF form that you have to complete.
view history	Click to view in detail the list of all system and user actions. This function enables:
	 the Proposal Coordinator to verify that partners have updated their forms Partners to verify that the coordinator has submitted the proposal in a timely fashion.
print preview	Click to open or download and save the proposal locally on your computer.
download templates	Click to download the latest proposal requirements package, in a readily editable (RTF) template.
	Once completed, you must convert the proposal template into a PDF file.
upload	Click to upload the respective file.
	The upload process for the complete set of files can take between a few seconds and a few minutes, depending on the speed of your Internet connection. When the upload is complete, the system displays a confirmation message and creates the respective entry in the history log.
	Please check the requirements for uploading your files below.

4.1. FAMILIARIZING YOURSELF WITH THE WIZARD AND THE FORM

Click the first 😨 button at the top of the screen to read the general help instructions for editing proposal forms, as shown on the visual example below:

LOGIN	FUNDING SCHEME	CREATE DRAFT	PARTIES	EDIT PROPOSAL	SUBMIT
Step 5 Edit Propo	ି ମ 0-EUJ-2014	Edit Proposals' Forms In this step you can edit the adminis	strative forms and upload	the proposal itself. 💿	
EUJ-1	s Bountouroglou 2014	Administrative Forms Edit will open the forms in Adobe F	Reader. ³	print preview	
10 Brussi 48 days lo Acronym Acronym RSW Configurati	ft until closure Edit Pro Edit Pro Pic C You Parti Subr and Subr prop Any Euro closure	Part B and Annexes pposals' Forms may return to this step from the icipant Portal. mit your proposal as early in the p resubmit an improved version ma mitting a proposal will overwrite al posal - this process is irreversible changes made here to the propose opean Commission/service in chargon ure.	"My Proposals" section process as possible - yo my times before the call ny previous versions of sal will not be available t ge unless resubmitted b	of the ou can update closure this same to the before the call	d any other
Voire of Window (version installe For mol consult	sing Firefox s. Adobe Reader 11,0,5,3) is d. e information, please the User Guide.	Supporting Document(s)	EFP7-SEP-SUPPORT@ec.eur	< Step 4 - Parties vali opa.eu (+32 (2) 29 92222)	e submit

Click the **3** button in the **Administrative Forms** section to read the help instructions for editing the administrative forms of the proposal, as shown on the visual example below:

LOGIN FUN		CREATE DRAFT	PARTIES	EDIT PROPOSAI	SUBMIT
Step 5 Edit Proposal		Edit Proposals' Forms In this step you can edit the adminis WARNING: This proposal contains	strative forms and upload s changes that have not y	I the proposal itself. ³	
Lazaros Bountouro	glou	Administrative Forms Edit will open the forms in Adobe F	Reader. 3		
April 2014 17:00:00 Brussels Local Tim 65 days left until closu Acronym ID PIC C Acronym tst1 Configuration OK You're using Chrom Windows. Adobe R (version 11,0,5,0) is installed. for more information consult the User Get	Adminis As conform budg Note form Alwa Data Bene that requ The left conform If you brow If you brow Please inform Extra fields expan	strative Forms oordinator you have the rights to participants can only update the get form. that participants and other coord while you are editing it, with the ys re-check the content for corre which is pre-populated in the adi ficiary Registry is read-only and o ficiary Registry is read-only and a change is necessary then pleas est an update via Participant Port forms will open in Adobe Acrobat of the screen indicates your syste u have a browser/OS combinatior vser plug-in, then the forms will o ur browser/OS does not support parate Adobe Acrobat window se click the "help page" in the Con mation and help a guidance can be found inside th s, guidance text when you positio andable help text denoted by a '?'	edit all sections of the eir relevant sections - ir dinator contacts may al last-saved having prior ctness prior to submiss ministrative forms from cannot be changed. If y e follow the existing pr al. - the configuration par m's readiness for this n which offers an Adob pen within this browse a plug-in then the forr figuration widget on the form as 'ghost text' on the mouse on the da 'box.	administrative ncluding the at onl lso update the rity sion n the rocedure to nel on the lower e Acrobat r session ms will open in he left for more in the data ata item and	y) and any other
done 🛞		on: 20140122-1403 - Service Desk: DIGIT-	EFP7-SEP-SUPPORT@ec.eu	< Step 4 - Parties ropa.eu (+32 (2) 29 92222)	validate submit

Click edit forms to open the form for editing.

Please see the Compatibility and Troubleshooting section at the end of this document for in depth information on your browser displaying the form in the open browser window or downloading it in your downloads file. If it is downloaded, you can work on the downloaded file offline. THE DOWNLOADED FORM HAS A TIME STAMP FROM THE COMMISSION'S SERVERS AND IT EXPIRES **13 HOURS AFTER IT IS DOWNLOADED**. IF YOU DO NOT COMPLETE, SAVE AND CLOSE THE FORM WITHIN 13 HOURS, YOU MUST DELETE THE OLD FORM, RETURN TO THE WIZARD AND DOWNLOAD A NEW COPY OF THE FORM. The images below display the form inside the browser window. Whether displayed in a browser window or downloaded to work offline, the functionality of all buttons. fields. and the entire process are exactly the same.

The form may not auto-fit in the size of your currently open window, as shown on the visual example above.

۷	Submissio	on of Proposals - Mozilla Firefox			x				
	https://e	ec. europa.eu /research/participants/subm	ission/eforms/secure/editform?draftid=SEP-2101409118tticket=ST-3553390-pGtBv7JAMgs	zJwCsAcsDtml					
	Forms								
	Z								
	E F	Please fill out the following form. You car 'lease print your completed form if you w	not save data typed into this form. rould like a copy for your records.	E	*				
		European Commission - Research - Participants							
	ñ	European Commission Directorate	General for Research and Innovation Valida	te Form	Si				
			Horizon 2020 Call: H2020-EUJ-2014						
		Topic: EUJ-1-2014							
		Type of action: RIA							
		Proposal number: SEP-210140911							
			Proposal acronym: RSW						
			Table of contents						
		Section	Title						
		1	General information						
•		2	Participants & contacts		•				

You may need to adjust your window size, or the form size, or both: When adjusting the window size, you will notice that the form has been opened on top of the Submission Wizard.

left Submission of Proposals - Mozilla Firefox	and the second se		-		
https://ec.europa.eu/research/participar	ts/submission/eforms/secure/editform?draftid=SEP-210140911&ticket=ST-35533	90-pGtBv7JAMgszJwCsAcsDtmN8kzINAfzbm	4Uvtt4JnqrQUCX2f0zUcf	RZ3D8bBN0oS8TKHkgRcstddIe	ghpKsA3A8-Jj71zxYb8yrTtch2eiO6My 🏠
Forms			×	AL SUBMIT	
	1 / 17 🗨 114% 🗸 🔛 🔛	Sign	Comment		
Please fill out the following form Please print your completed form	. You cannot save due spect for anis form. if you would like a copy for your records.	F Highlight	Existing Fields		
	pean Commission - Lesearch - Participants pposal Submission Forms				
Direc	torite-General for Risearch and Innovation	Validate Form Save And	Close		
Use t	Horizon 2020 he zooming (+/-) buttons to zoom the form window size in or out	14			
Alterna	atively, you can specify the percentage	1		only) and any other	
ratio i pre-de	n the % drop-down list: either select a fined percentage from the drop-down	r -			
list (i.e	e. 150%) or type in the desired number directly in the field.			⊗ 3	
	Proposal number: SEP-216	140911		8	
	Proposal acronym [,] R	5\\/		0	
	rioposat actoriym. A				
				unlidata automit	
	Table of contents			validate	
	TADLE OF CONTENTS				
Section	Title	Action			
1	General information	Show			
2	Participants & contacts	Show			
3 210 x 297 mm ↓	Budget	Show			

Use the zooming (+/-) buttons to zoom the form in or out.

Alternatively, you can specify the percentage ratio in the % drop-down list: either select a pre-defined percentage from the drop-down list (i.e. 150%) or type in the desired number directly in the field.

You can also move the mouse cursor to the top of the form and move the form into place as needed.

What You Need to Know about Completing the Form

Who Can Fill In the Form?

The Main Contact is the only person that can complete the form, including the budget table and all other administrative details. Partners can preview the form and edit their contact detail information.

Click the edit forms button to access the forms.

Read-only Fields

The list of participants and contact persons, the Participant Identification Code (PIC) and the respective summary data of the participants (shown in blue in the form) are read-only fields. To modify the list of participants or contact persons, please go back to Step 4. To modify the legal data of the organisation, please read more about it in this <u>Data Update</u> section.

Guidance in the Form

If you click on the question marks in blue, you can read more information about the question or section.

Each box of the form contains a short text guiding you on the format, the length and the expected level of information. That text appears when you bring your cursor over the top of the box. Once you click on the text or start editing the information, it disappears automatically.

Navigation in the Form

To view the different sections in the form, you may either use the scroll bar or click on the blue "Show" buttons as seen in the Table of contents.

Validation

The form has built in checks and gives error or warning messages in case fields are not completed. Please click on the Validate Form button to check your data. Errors and warnings will be listed at the end of the form. Error fields will be highlighted in yellow, whereas fields with warnings will be highlighted in red. Errors mean that mandatory information is missing (such as the Proposal Title) and the proposal cannot be submitted until these errors are resolved. Warning messages do not block submission, but they indicate missing information that may be important for the proposal and, ideally, these warning messages ought to also be addressed and the information fields ought to be corrected. By clicking on the "Show" button, you can easily get back to the respective fields to correct them.

Saving of the Data

Before closing the form, click on the Save And Close button. The save and close function does not validate the information on the form, so it works even if the form is not completely filled in. This will take you back to Step 5, where you can upload the Technical Annex and any additional documents.

You may return to edit the form as many times as you wish prior to call closure. Any changes saved on the form need to be <u>resubmitted</u> in order to be received by the European Commission and considered for evaluation.

Technical Requirements

The configuration check tool, located on the bottom left-hand side of the submission system, automatically verifies if your system configuration complies with the <u>minimum requirements</u>.

Action Buttons within the Form

Button	Description
Validate Form	When you click this button, all data fields in the forms will be validated against a set of rules.
	The system assesses if the available data is valid, checks the data formats, performs computations, and checks interlinked data for consistency.
	Any issues found in the form are reported at the end of the PDF form.
Save And Close	Click to save the completed administrative form and close it for editing.
	You can save your form data even if the form is not completely filled in - you can edit it at any moment prior to the deadline. Save and Close does not validate the data.

Two action buttons in the PDF form help you find and verify the information easily.

4.2. EDITING AND COMPLETING THE FORM

To start completing the form, scroll down or click on the blue button to navigate to the respective section of your form. This is primarily an administrative form that requires general information, administrative data of participating organizations, budget information by partner, and also Call-specific information.

//cc.europa.eu/research/participants/submission/eforms/secure/editform?draftid=SEP-210140911&ticket=ST-3553390-pGIB/7IAM ns P P P 70% H H I	gszJwCsAcsD
ns ? 🖱 🖶 🖂 🌒 1 / 17 🔵 🗣 70% 🕄 🗄 🕅 🆃	
P 🖴 🖂 🌒 1 / 17 - + 70% v	
🤋 🖳 😓 🖂 🔿 😩 1 / 17 🗩 🗭 70% 🗸 🖂 📇 🖾	
Please fill out the following form. You cannot save data typed into this form.	
European Commission - Research - Participants Proposal Submission Forms	
Directorate-General for Research and Innovation Validate Form Save An	d Close
Horizon 2020	- 1
Call: H2020-EUJ-2014	- 1
Topic: FUI-1-2014	- 1
Type of action PIA	- 1
Type of action: RIA	- 1
Proposal number: SEP-210140911	- 1
Proposal acronym: RSW	
Table of contents	
	_
Section Title	┡
1 General information Show	
2 Participants & contacts	
3 Budget (Show	
S Call-specific ourstions Stew	
	ショ
How to fill in the forms	
Some data fields in the administrative forms are pre-filled based on the previous steps in the submission wizard.	system.
	d more
	- 1
H2020-4Pppf-Ver14020140204 Page 1 of 17 Last saved 21/02/2014 at	09:06

4.3. FORM VALIDATION, SAVE AND CLOSE

You must click the Validate Form button to make sure that your application meets the administrative requirements. The form will run a self check and advise you of any erros or warnings, as per the examples below:

Validations
Ine following warnings will not block submission of your proposal, but may affect its eligibility during evaluation:
Eligibility warnings
 Call requires at least 3 participant(s) from different EU member states or associated countries, currently you have 1.
Close

The validation errors shown below ...

Proposal ID SEP-	European Commission Proposal Submi Directorate-General for F -210137892	- Research - Participants ission Forms Research and Innovation Acronym Creative1	Table Of Contents	Validate Form	Save And Close
Validati	on result				
Section	Description				
Declaration		Declaration acceptance is r	nandatory		Show
Declaration		Declaration acceptance mis	ssing		Show
Declaration		Declaration acceptance mis	sing		Show

... are highlighted in the body of the form.

European Commission - Research - Participants Proposal Submission Forms Directorate-General for Research and Innovation Table Of Contents Validate Form	Save And Close
Proposal ID SEP-210137892 Acronym Creative1	
Declarations	?
 The coordinator declares to have the explicit consent of all applicants on their participation and on the content of this proposal. 	
 The information contained in this proposal is correct and complete. 	
3) This proposal complies with ethical principles (including the highest standards of research integrity — as set out, for instance, in the <u>European Code of Conduct for Research Integrity</u> — and including, in particular, avoiding fabrication, falsification, plagiarism or other research misconduct).	

When all errors are corrected, the validation test shows that there are no errors.

	European Commission - Research - Participants Proposal Submission Forms					
European Commission	Directorate-General for Research and Innovation	Table Of Contents	Validate Form Save And Close	J.		
Proposal ID SE	P-210137892 Actonym Creative1			1		
Validation result						
There are no	validation errors.					

When all issues are fixed, click the Save And Close button. Your form has now been saved on the Commission servers, but it is not yet considered as submitted. Your proposal submission takes place next.

4.4. PART B - DOWNLOADING AND COMPLETING THE ANNEX FORMS

Click on download templates to download the latest proposal requirements template in a readily editable RTF file.



The template describes the information that must be included in your application and how to structure that information. You will need to complete this package as thoroughly as possible. You may want to also check with <u>Enterprise Europe Network</u> and your <u>National Contacts Point</u> for Assistance (see the *Support* menu of the Participant Portal). It is important that you remain within the file size and page limits that a proposal may have. Once you have completed your proposal based on the downloaded template, you must convert it into a PDF file, which you will then upload as an Annex form of the proposal. This is referred to as Part B of your proposal.

4.5. UPLOADING THE ANNEX FORMS

The following file upload requirements are mandatory:

Clean up your document before converting it to PDF (e.g. accept all tracked changes, delete internal review notes or comments, etc.).

- 1. The file size for the Part B of the proposal may be limited. If so, the limits are given in the documentation available in the call's information package on the Participant Portal. Use a maximum resolution of 300 dpi for all graphics and text (photocopy quality). This can dramatically reduce the PDF file size.
- 2. Embed all fonts in the PDF file (math symbols, non-Latin alphabet text, etc.).
- 3. Check that your PDF conversion software has successfully converted all the pages of your original document (e.g. check for any problems with page limits, tables, graphics or footnotes).
- 4. Check that your PDF conversion software has not cut down landscape pages to fit them into portrait format.
- 5. Check that captions and labels have not been lost from your diagrams
- 6. Please note that the Commission prints out proposals in black and white on plain A4 paper. If you are using colours, make sure that they are correctly interpreted and visible as nuances of grey.
- 7. Ensure that the printable zone on the print engine is bounded by a 2 cm margin from right, left, top and bottom sides, that no scaling is applied to make the page "fit" the window, and that printing is done at 300 dots per inch
- 8. Ensure that the Part B file names contain only alphanumeric characters (A-Z, 0-9)
- 9. Do not put a password on the attached file. Your proposal will not be printed and the Commission will not request any additional information from you.
- 10. Check the quality of your uploaded files. After uploading them, download them to check whether the transfer is correct and if the file is complete. If not, make the necessary corrections and resubmit.

Note: If the Commission encounters a problem when opening or printing the file, the complete proposal will be considered ineligible.

Only the proposal coordinator can upload the Part B of the proposal and submit the proposal, go back to the previous step and change or delete the participating organisation and the associated contact persons. Partners can download the template and the uploaded files.

Once the downloaded templates have been completed and are ready to upload:

1. Click the upload button for the respective document in Step 5 of the Submission Wizard.



2. Select the file to upload from the **File Upload** window. If your file has blank spaces in its name, the system will upload it filing the blank spaces with "_".

🕹 File Upload		AND DESCRIPTION OF ADDRESS OF ADD		X
Libraries > Documen	its 🕨	My Documents + Documents	✓ 4 Search Docur	nents P
Organize 🔻 New folder				≡ - □ 0
☆ Favorites ■ Desktop	^	Documents library	Arrang	e by: Folder 🔻
Downloads		Name	Date modified	Туре
Recent Places	E	Technical_Annex_Section_1-3.pdf	25/02/2014 12:53	Adobe Acrobat D.
Libraries Coursents Course				
 Music My Documents Bit to set 				
Videos				
🖳 Computer	-	•		•
File <u>n</u> ame: Techni	cal_A	nnex_Section_1-3.pdf	 ✓ All Files (*.*) Open 	Cancel
3. Click

Open

A confirmation message will appear:



Note: If the file uploaded is not in a valid PDF format, the system will show an error message instead of a confirmation.

4. Click Close. The uploaded file will be shown in the list and a green check mark will appear next to it, as shown in the visual example below:



5. Optionally, when needed, you can delete an uploaded file and upload a new one in its place.

4.6. VALIDATE AND SUBMIT YOUR APPLICATION

You must click the validate button to make sure that your application meets the requirements. The system will check and advise you of any issues with all the forms, and whether your application meets the requirements of Partners, file sizes, number of pages, etc. Any errors will be displayed as indicated below:

		CREATE DRAFT	PARTIES	EDIT PROPOS	SAL s	
Step 5	Validations					
Edit Proposal	J- Part A Form	al cannot be submitte	d until the errors belov	v are corrected:		
	Declaration			view errors (1)		
EUJ-1-2014	Part B and ann	exes				
E RIA	Mandatory Tech Mandatory Tech	inical Annex Section 1-3 is mis inical Annex Section 4-5 is mis	sing sing			
THU April 2014 17 10 Brussels Loc	tio al					
days left until	ck 0 The followin may affect its e	g warnings will not blo ligibility during evalua	ock submission of your tion:	proposal, but	nly) and any oth	ner
Acronym ID P	IC Eligibility warn	ings				
Acronym _{RSW}	Call requires at currently you h	least 3 participant(s) from diff ave 2.	erent EU member states or ass	sociated countries,		
	Part A Form				×	
Configuration O	Declaration			view warnings (5)	۲	0
Windows. Add	General Inform	nation		view warnings (1) view warnings (2)		0
For more infor consult the Us	• Participants an m: ser	d contacts		view warnings (18)		
				Close	validate	
done 🛞	Version: 201	40122-1403 - Service Desk: DI	GIT-EFP7-SEP-SUPPORT@ec.et	uropa.eu (+32 (2) 29 92222)	1	

You can click on the errors and warnings to view their detail, as indicated below.

H2020-EI11-2	🕄 Your proposal cannot be submit	tted until the errors below are corrected:	
	Part A Form		
	• Declaration	view errors (1) Declaration acceptance is mandatory 	
EUJ-1-2014	Part B and annexes		
E RIA	Mandatory Technical Annex Section 1-3 is Mandatory Technical Annex Section 4-5 is	missing	
10 Brussels Local T			
43 days left until clos	O The following warnings will not may affect its eligibility during eval	block submission of your proposal, but uation:	y) and any other
Acronym ID PIC	Eligibility warnings		
RSW	 Call requires at least 3 participant(s) from currently you have 2. 	different EU member states or associated countries,	80
Configuration OK	Part A Form		\otimes
You're using Firefo Windows. Adobe (version 11,0,5,3) installed.	Declaration	view warnings (5) • Declaration acceptance missing • Declaration acceptance missing • Declaration acceptance missing • Declaration acceptance missing • Declaration acceptance missing	0
For more informat	• Ethics	view warnings (1) • Declaration - missing entry	
Consult the Osci i	General Information	view warnings (2) • Duration - missing entry • Similar Proposal submitted - missing entry	
done 🛞	Participants and contacts	view warnings (18) • Department Name - missing entry • Street - missing entry • Town - missing entry • Postal Code - missing entry • Main Contact Street - missing entry • Main Contact Street - missing entry • Main Contact City - missing entry • Main Contact City - missing entry • Main Contact Street - missing entry • Main Contact Street - missing entry • Department Name - missing entry	validate submit
	•	 Street - missing entry Town - missing entry Postal Code - missing entry Country - missing entry Main Contact Position - missing entry Main Contact Street - missing entry Main Contact Street - missing entry Main Contact Sex - missing entry 	
		Close	

Each error detail line is a link to the respective section of the form. Clicking on the link, opens the form on top of the errors and warnings page, so you can correct it. Once done, close the form and you will be back to the errors and warnings page.

When all errors and warnings are corrected, click the validate button again to make sure you have not missed anything. Once you get the No Errors validation screen, click on submit. Your proposal has now been submitted and the system displays a message indicating that the proposal has been received.

The Submitted status will also be shown on the **My proposals** page of the Participant Portal. The system also sends a submission confirmation e-mail to the Proposal Coordinator, containing the details of the submitted proposal. Note that the e-mail could end up in the spam folder or get blocked by the anti-spam system of your organisations, so make sure that you check for it as needed.

The point at which the submission takes effect is the moment when the Proposal Coordinator clicks without any errors found, and sees the message indicating that the proposal has been received. It is not the point at which the upload of the Annex documents is started. Therefore, if you wait until too near to the close of the call to start uploading your proposal, there is a serious risk that you will not be able to submit it on time.

You can upload your Annex documents or submit your proposal as many times as you wish prior to the call deadline, but it is strongly advised not to wait until the final moment to perform these operations. Each time you

upload a new Annex document, you <u>must</u> click submit, if you want to save your changes.

USER ACTION #5: The 'Proposal Submitted' Page

Reaching Step 5 means that your proposal has been successfully submitted and therefore sent to the European Commission services for evaluation.

In Step 5 you can perform the following actions, as indicated on the visual example below:

		CREATE DRAFT	PARTIES	Successfully submitted message
Submit	<u>2011-9</u>	Your proposal has been s Your proposal was submitted on: as part of the FP7-ICT-2011-9 ca Local Time). Your project ID is 601791 . This n evaluation process.	Successfully submitted 5 July 2012 at 12:21:23 (Bru all, before the deadline of 31 De umber is important and will be o	ussels Local Time) cember 2013 at 17:00:00 (Brussels used as future reference during the
€ CSA-SA		Revisit your Proposal	Revise proposal	
TUE December 31 Brussels 544 days left un Acronym ID Draft ID	2013 17:00:00 Local Time til closure PIC Contact	You may edit your proposal and deadline of 31 December 2013 by clicking the "re-edit proposal" A digitally signed and time-stam proposal can be viewed/down-lo	re-submit at any time before th at 17:00:00 (Brussels Local T butted Download propose ped version of your submitted baded. Note: this can take from	e re-edit proposal Fime) sal download
SEP-200017926	ок 🔇	Seconds to several hours deper You may withdraw the proposal doing so it will not be passed to	at any time prior to call closure the evaluation stage.	al withdraw proposal
 You're using Windows. A (version 9 or installed For more inf the help pag Starter Man 	Firefox 10 on dobe Reader above) is ormation, go to te, or read the ual.			
done 🛞	Ve	rsion: 20120704-1558 - Support: DIGIT-E	FP7-SEP-SUPPORT@ec.europa.eu	(+32 (2) 29 92222)

Revise (Re-edit) the Proposal

Click the **re-edit proposal** button to go back to Step 5 if you need to revise the proposal. The Proposal Coordinator may continue to modify the proposal and submit revised versions overwriting each preceding one right up until the deadline.

Download Submitted Proposal Package

After you submit the proposal, it is advised to download it in order to check that it has been correctly sent. The downloaded proposal will be digitally signed by the Commission's servers and time-stamped. Depending on the

system load, this action may take some time before it is accessible. Click the **download** button to download the proposal.

Note: Sometimes, after you download the submitted proposal, you may see the following message: "the signature is not guilty." – this means that the signature is not valid Please consult the Troubleshooting Document Signature section further in this document for more details.

Withdraw Submitted Proposal

If the proposal is withdrawn, it will not be considered for evaluation. However, the system will keep the proposal draft and the withdraw action may be reversed by re-submitting the proposal before the deadline. The system will request a reason for the withdrawal.

When a proposal is withdrawn, a message is displayed on the screen, as shown in the visual example below. The system also sends a submission confirmation e-mail to the Proposal Coordinator, containing the details of the withdrawn proposal. Note that the e-mail could end up in the spam folder or get blocked by the anti-spam system of your organisations, so make sure that you check for it as needed.

button.

To complete this action, click the withdraw proposal

PARTNER ACTIONS

As discussed above, a partner must have access to the ECAS and a PIC, in order to be added as a Partner.

When the Proposal Coordinator clicks Save Changes in Step 4, the system sends an automatic email to all the Partner contacts with the proposal related links.

Once the Partners enter the electronic submission system, it will display Step 5 of the submission process where

the edit forms button enables them to access the electronic administrative forms and the rest of the proposal package as their participation requires.

To access the consortium contact details, they will need to click the submission process.

Completing the forms

When the PDF form is opened, the partner will have to verify or fill in their administrative forms.

When they finish, they must make sure that no validation errors are left unaddressed. To check for validation errors, they will need to use the **VALIDATE FORMS** button located at the bottom of the page.

CHAPTER 3: REFERENCE GUIDE TO ROLES, SCREENS & ACCESS TO USER ACTIONS

Roles, Proposal Coordinator, Partner, Referee, Contact Person

The roles that are available in the system are the Proposal Coordinator, Partners, Referees, and Contact Persons (optionally). The Proposal Coordinator and each of the Partners have a Main Contact and can optionally have one or more additional Contact Persons. Depending on the proposal you participate in, you might act on behalf of one or more of these roles and your current role will determine the actions you will be enabled to perform and the information you will be required to provide.

- **Proposal Coordinator**. The Proposal Coordinator acts as the single point of contact between the participants and the Commission for the respective proposal. The Proposal Coordinator is generally responsible for the overall planning of the proposal; for building up the consortium that will do the work, and (s)he is always the first participant. Note that for some calls, only one participant is needed and the participant will be the Proposal Coordinator of the given proposal by default.
- **Partner**. If you are a Partner to a proposal, you will be invited by the Proposal Coordinator to fill the administrative forms that contain the contact and address details. Most of the fields will be pre-filled with data already supplied by the Commission systems in order to save time and to ensure better data quality.
- **Contact Person**. As an option, you as a Proposal Coordinator or as a Partner may decide to delegate some of the work on filling in or reviewing your parts of the proposal submission forms to one or more additional Contact Persons. You can grant each Contact Person full access rights or read-only access to the forms data. A Contact Person will only be entitled to edit/view the parts of the proposal that his/her organisation is responsible for.

Role Rights: The following table highlights the differences between a Proposal Coordinator and Partner actions:

Action	Proposal Coordinator	Partner
Select the call	Yes	No
Add, Invite Participants	Yes	No
Submit the proposal	Yes	No
Read complete proposal	Yes	Yes
Define the budget tables	Yes	No
Create Contacts for a Partner	Yes	No

The Timeline around the Deadline

Proposals can be submitted multiple times before the call deadline specified in the information package of the call, available from the Participant Portal. Calls deadlines are fixed and are strictly enforced. Only the last submitted version will be evaluated, where each newly submitted version overwrites the preceding one. After the call deadline, the proposal can no longer be modified and no further participants can be invited. Practise the submission action well before the deadline to ensure a risk-free submission of your proposal and proper correction of warnings.

After the deadline, the proposal remains available in read-only mode and can be accessed by the coordinator and the proposal participants invited before the deadline.

The Online Submission Wizard: Screens and Access to User Actions

The electronic submission system screen is organised as follows:

- A progress bar banner showing the proposal completion progress.
- Buttons for the available Actions.
- The ID card of your proposal shown on the left-hand side of the screen. The information displayed there is completed as the user progresses. You can click on the Acronym, ID, PIC, and Contact tabs.
- Configuration status check tool it is displayed in the bottom left part of the screen. In the visual example below, the configuration complies with the minimum requirements.
- Navigation buttons available in the bottom right corner of the screen.



The most important pages of the online submission wizard are briefly described below.

Wizard Step 3: CREATE DRAFT



The visual example below shows the CREATE DRAFT screen of the Wizard:

Wizard Step 4: PARTIES

The visual example below shows the PARTIES screen of the Wizard:



Wizard Step 5: EDIT PROPOSAL

The visual example below shows the EDIT PROPOSAL screen of the Wizard:



Wizard Step 6: SUBMIT

The visual example below shows the SUBMIT screen of the Wizard:



The Participant Portal: Screens and Access to User Actions

The <u>Research and Innovation Participant Portal</u> is your entry point to the electronic submission service. It enables you to access the following actions:

- Familiarize yourself with the overall research and innovation grant process by first consulting the <u>Funding</u> <u>Guide</u>.
- Decide on the funding opportunity that you want to apply for.
- Select your Partners check Partner information in the Beneficiary Register.
- Register as a user in ECAS.
- Register your organisation and your Partner organisations in the Beneficiary Register.
- Login to the Participant Portal and Select your Topic to access the Online Submission Service.
- Use the MY AREA > <u>My Proposals</u> / <u>My Organisations</u> pages to access your draft and submitted Proposals.

Participant Portal: Before You Log In

In the Home page, you can log in (if you have an ECAS account) or register to ECAS. Before logging in, you can still familiarize yourself with the grant process and funding opportunities and you can check Partner information.



Participant Portal: The ECAS Login Screen

When you click **a** LOGIN, you will be prompted to authenticate through the ECAS login screen, as shown in the visual example below. This screen appears in the same window and after login (or registration) you will be returned to the Home page of the Participant Portal.



Participant Portal: The ECAS Login Domain Selection Screen

After you log in, the Home page will show you your personalised MY AREA tab, where you can access your Organisations, Proposals, Projects, Notifications, and Experts.



Participant Portal: The HOW TO PARTICIPATE Page

This page is your main source of information in the stage of preparation for a proposal submission. It enables you the following:

- Register your and your Partners' organisations in the Beneficiary Register
- Read the H2020 Online Manual and a number of Reference Documents
- Perform a Financial Capacity Self-Check
- Check the conditions regarding SME Participation

Click to a	access the H2020 Online M	lanual and/or the	(A-Z) Sitemap Reference docu	About this site Contact Legal ments list	Notice English •
R	SEARCH & KNNC	OVATION			
European Commission P	articipant Portal		Click t	o open the H2020 Online	Manual
European Commission > Research & In ac	vation > P=rticipant Portal > Fund	ding			
HOME FUNDING OPPORT	UNITIES HOW TO PARTICIPAT	TE EXPERTS SI	JPPORT *	A 10	
H2020 Online Manual		How to	participate	H2020 ONL	INE MANUAL
Reference Documents Beneficiary Register		The first ste how to find	ps to prepare your pro a suitable Call for prop	pposal and apply for EU researd posals or project partners and I	ch funding, Learn now to submit
Financial Capacity Self-Check	mm	The followin	ng guidance services fa	cilitate your participation:	
SME Participation		• H2020 (from pro	Online Manual: step-b posal preparation and	py-step online guide through the submission to reporting on you	e Portal processes ir on-going project
		Referen additiona	i ce documents: librar Il reference material fo	ry of legal documents, guidance or H2020 and FP7	e notes, and
Click to open the Beneficiary Register page		• search fo	or already registered o	rganisations and their PICs	- Essecial viability
where you can register your organisation and your		check of	your organisation	.k tool allows you simulating ti	ie inanciai viability
Partners' organisations		• SME par	ticipation: dedicated	H2020 guidance page for SME	
	FIND F	IND	CREATE	REGISTER	SUBMIT
	1	2	3	4	5
	Step 1 - Find a suitable	Call for Propose	als H2020 ONLIN	E MANUAL	
	The Commission publishes on th you can search calls from previo additional calls in the Other Fund programmes, it is useful to read area and profile. Besides, you c Your National Contact Point can by the Enterprise Europe Netwo	he Participant Portal ious programmes (FF ding Opportunities so d the H2020 Online M can search according also help you find th rk.	all the Calls of its rese 7 and CIP). In addition action. If you apply for lanual. It helps you ch to your research topic ne most suitable call fo	arch and innovation programm n you can find information abou the first time and do not know oose the most suitable program with key words and set filters r your profile. SMEs are in add	es H2020, and ut some yet the nme for your in the calls list. ition supported
	Step 2 - Find project pa	rtners or apply	as an individual	H2020 ONLINE MANUAL]
	Collaborative projects: most different EU Member States or A would like to participate in the p	t of the EU funded pr Associated countries proposals. You can a	ojects are collaborativo Various partner searc Iso post your collabora	e projects with at least 3 org a th services help you to find orga tion offers there.	anisations from anisations that
	Individual researcher or tea organisation. Such opportunities Marie Skłodowska-Curie act	am: It is also possibl s are mainly funded tions (MSCA), and i	e to submit your propo under the H2020 Euro ndividual SMEs can app	osal as an individual researcher pean Research Council (ER ply to the H2020 SME instrum	r, team or C) grants and the nent.
	Step 3 - Create an accou	unt on the porta	H2020 ONLINE	MANUAL	
	To fill in the required forms and	I submit them electro	onically to the Commis	sion, you first need to create a	n account on the

Participant Portal: The BENEFICIARY REGISTER Page After Login

The Beneficiary Register page is opened from the HOW TO PARTICIPATE page. It enables you to:

- **Search** through the registered organisations database and identify if your desired Partners' organisations are already registered in Participant Portal.
- Start (or Resume) the organisation registration process via the Unique Registration Facility.

	(A-Z) Sitemap About this site Contact Legal Notice English 🔹
RI	ESEARCH & INNOVATION
European Commission Pa	articipant Portal
European Commission > Research & Innov	vation > Participant Portal > Organisation Search
MY AREA HOME FUNDING OPPORTU	JNITIES HOW TO PARTICIPATE EXPERTS SUPPORT -
My Organisation(s)	
My Proposal(s)	Beneficiary Register H2020 ONLINE MANUAL
My Project(s)	
My Notification(s)	
My Expert Area	The Commission has an online register of the beneficiaries participating in the EU research and innovation or education, audiovisual and cultural programmes. This allows consistent handling of the beneficiaries' official data and avoids multiple requests for the same information.
H2020 Online Manual	If you want to participate in a project proposal, your organisation needs to be registered and have a 9-digit
Reference Documents	Participant Identification Code (PIC) that is the unique identifier of your organisation and will be used as a reference by the Commission in any interactions.
Beneficiary Register	
Financial Capacity Self-Check	
SME Participation	Is your organisation already registered? Search PIC
	If you did not find your organisation in the register, you can start its registration below. Partners' organisations are already registered.
	Register your organisation
	Please note that you need to have a valid ECAS account to start registering your organisation or update its data. Login in the Portal or create your account, if you are a new user.
	Please keep the legal data of your organisation at hand. You may check the information that will be necessary for the registration in the user manual. To start registration, click on the button below.
Click to initiate the organisation registration	REGISTER ORGANISATION
open in a new window the Registration Will Unique Registration Facility.	You can quit the registration process at any time; the data entered can be saved as a draft and you may continue your registration at a later time. Save the already entered data by clicking on the Save draft button at the bottom of the registration tool before you quit it.
	After providing all the necessary details, click on the Confirm button to submit your registration. You will receive a PIC number that should be used in any interactions with the Commission in the future.
	If you did not finalise the registration, you can continue it later on My Organisations of the My Area section. Incomplete, draft registrations are automatically deleted after one year.
	You can modify your organisation data also on the My Organisations page of the My Area section.
	Once your data has been validated by the Validation Service team, only the Legal Entity Appointed Representative (LEAR) (or the persons with an "Account Administrative" role for this organisation) will be able to request the modification of the data and provide the corresponding supporting documents on the My Organisations page of the Participant Portal.
	HORIZON 2020 RESEARCH ON EUROPA CORDIS OLAF

Participant Portal: The FUNDING OPPORTUNITIES Page

The Funding Opportunities page is your access point for searching and selecting Calls for your proposals.



Participant Portal: The CALLS Search & Selection Page

The CALLS search & selection page for the selected Programme contains a filtering/search panel at the top of the page and under it a result list of Calls (depending on your filtering criteria) in the form of clickable boxes. If you click on a specific Call box, you will go to the Call Details page for that Call. The visual example below shows a list of Horizon 2020 calls.

RE	SEARCH & INNOVATIO	(A-Z) Sitemap About this	s site Contact Legal Notice English 💌
Commission Part	ticipant Portal		
European Commission > Research & Innova	ion > Participant Portal > Calls		
MY AREA HOME FUNDING OPPORTUN My Organisation(s) My Proposal(s) My Project(s)	only see Calls involving these (depending on your other filtering criteria)	Use these opt results by sta	ions to sort the type and/or thus
My Expert Area	Excellent Science		Type Proposal
Horizon 2020 Calls	European Research Council Future and Emerging Technologies Marie Sklodowska-Curie actions Research infrastructures Industrial Leadership Leadership in enabling and industri Access to risk finance Innovation in SMEs	ial technologies(LEIT)	 Tender Status Open Closed Forthcoming
Call Undates	Filter a call	FILTER	
Choose an option by which to sort the Calls result list	Filters only programme and call titles	Here you can sear type a relevant to and IDs, for extended search go to the S	ch for a Call by a specific keyword – word in the field and click FILTER learch Tonics page.
2014-2020	Sort by Title Call Id	Rublication Date De	adline Date
Research Fund for Coal & steel The Calls result list – click on the desired Call box to open its details and familiarize with them and/or proceed to proposal submission Consumer Programme	Industrial Leadership EU-Japan Research and Development Cooperation in Net Futures H2020-EUJ-2014	Prize - Innovation SOFT H2020-Prize-Innovation- SOFT-2014	Societal Challenges MOBILITY for GROWTH 2014-2015 H2020-MG-2015_TwoStages
FP7 & CIP Programmes 2007-2013	Pub.Date: 07/01/2014 Deadline: 10/04/2014 Societal Challenges MOBILITY for GROWTH 2014-2015 H2020-MG-2015-Singlestage-B	Pub.Date: 07/01/2014 Deadline: 16/04/2014 Societal Challenges MOBILITY for GROWTH 2014-2015 H2020-MG-2015_SingleStage-A	Pub.Date: 11/12/2013 Deadline: 31/03/2015 Societal Challenges MOBILITY for GROWTH 2014-2015 H2020-MG-2014_TwoStages
Other Funding Opportunities	Societal Challenges MOBILITY for GROWTH 2014-2015 H2020-MG-2014_SingleStage_B	Societal Challenges MOBILITY for GROWTH 2014-2015 H2020-MG-2014_SingleStage_A	Societal Challenges GREEN VEHICLES 2015 H2020-GV-2015

Participant Portal: CALL Details - TOPIC Selection for a CALL

When you select a Call for your proposal submission, you must select a **Topic** in the **Call description** tab that opens.

	(A-Z) Sitemap About this site Contact Legal Notice English -
RE	SEARCH & INNOVATION
European Commission Pat	ticipant Portal
European Commission > Research & Innova	ation > Participant Portal > Opportunities
MY AREA HOME FUNDING OPPORTU	NITIES HOW TO PARTICIPATE EXPERTS SUPPORT -
My Organisation(s)	
My Proposal(s)	
My Project(s)	EU-JAPAN RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT COOPERATION IN NET FUTURES
My Notification(s)	H2020-EUJ-2014
My Expert Area	Publication date 2014-01-07 Deadline Date 2014-04-10 +17:00:00 (Brussels local time)
	Status Open OJ reference OJ C361 of 11.12.2013
Horizon 2020	
Calls	
Search Topics	These tab pages provide detailed information about the selected Call
Call Updates 🔯	
	Call description Call documents Get support Subscribe to Notifications
20 This panel provides summary information about the selected Call	Call summary The coordinated call by the Ministry of Internal Affairs and Communications of Japan (MIC) can be found at
3rd Health Programme	http://www.soumu.go.jp/menu_news/s-news/01tsushin03_02000065.html
Consumer Programme This panel provides update information about the selected Call	The coordinated call by the National Institute of Information and Communications Technology of Japan (NICT) can be found at http://www.nict.go.jp/collabo/commission/20140107kobo.html
ED7 & CID Programmes	Call updates
Calls 🔊	• 2014-01-23 14:11:55
Call Updates 🔂	The submission session is now available for: EUJ-1-2014(RIA), EUJ-2-2014(RIA), EUJ-3-2014(RIA), EUJ-4-2014(RIA)
Other Funding Opportunities	
	Topics and submission service
To proceed to proposal submission, select a Topic from the list	 EUJ-1-2014: Technologies combining big data, internet of things in the cloud EUJ-2-2014: Optical communications EUJ-3-2014: Access networks for densely located users EUJ-4-2014: Experimentation and development on federated Japan - EU testbeds
	HORIZON 2020 RESEARCH ON EUROPA CORDIS OLAF
	© European Communities

Participant Portal: Accessing the Submission Service for a Selected Topic

After you select the Call and the specific Topic, click **START SUBMISSION** to start the Proposal Submission process in the Online Submission Wizard, which will open in a new window (see the previous section for a description of these screens).

	RE	(A-Z) Sitemap About this site Contact Legal Notice English
Commission	Par	ticipant Portal
European Commission	Research & Innova	tion > Participant Portal > Opportunities
MY AREA HOME	FUNDING OPPORTUN	ITIES HOW TO PARTICIPATE EXPERTS SUPPORT -
My Organisation(5)	
My Proposal(s)		FUL Japan Besearch and Development Cooperation in Net Futures
My Project(s)		EO-Japan Research and Development Cooperation in Net Futures
My Expert Area	6	H2U2U-EUJ-2UI4 Publication date 2014-01-07 Deadline Date 2014-04-10 17:00:00 (Brussels local time)
Horizon 2020		Total Call Budget €6,000,000 Main Pillar Industrial Leadership Status Open OJ reference OJ C361 of 11.12.2013
Calls	5	
Search Topics		Topic: Technologies combining big data, internet of things in EUJ-1-2014 the cloud
Call Updates	5	The Submission Service tab is your access point to the
Other EU Prog 2014-2020 Research Fund for	grammes or Coal & Steel	To access the Electronic Submission Service of the call, please select the type of action that is most relevant to your proposal from the list below. You will then be linked to the correct entry point.
COSME		To access existing draft proposals for this call, please login to the Participant Portal and select the My Proposals page
3rd Health Progra	amme	of the My Area section
Consumer Progra	mme	Research and Innovation action START SUBMISSION Research and Innovation action [RIA] Select the Action from the drop
FP7 & CIP Prog 2007-2013	grammes	down menu (usually there is just one Action) and then click on the START SUBMISSION button to go
Calls		to the Online Submission Wizard
Call Updates	5	
Other Funding Opp	portunities	
		HORIZON 2020 RESEARCH ON EUROPA CORDIS OLAF
		© European Communities

Participant Porta: MY ORGANISATIONS Page After Login

After you log in, you will be able to use your personalised **MY AREA** tab, where you can access your Organisations and perform different actions related to them – view or modify organisation details, view proposals for these organisations, view roles, and view projects.

R	ESEARCH & INNO	(A VATION	-Z) Sitemap About th	nis site Contact Legal	Notice English 💌
European Commission Pa	irticipant Portal				
European Commission > Research & Innov	vation > Participant Portal > My Org	anisations			
MY AREA HOME FUNDING OPPORTU	INTTIES HOW TO PARTICIPATE	EXPERTS SUPPORT	•		🛔 IVAN TERZIEV 🔻
My Organisation(s) My Proposal(s)	My Organisations			H2020 ON	LINE MANUAL
My Notification(s) My Expert Area Your personalised MY AREA tab – click My Organisations to see a list of your registered (or draft) organisations (organisations that you have a role with).	To access and manage you nominated as a Legal Entity LEAR). As a Financial Stater LEARs and Account Adminis well as access the list of pro My Registered Organis LEGEND Vo View Organisatio Show 10 ventries	r organisation data online, Appointed Representative ment Authorised Signatory trators can view all the ro ojects and proposals. ations mo Modify Organisations	you must have regist (LEAR) or an Accouni (FSIGN), you can have les of their organisatio	ered the data initially of Administrator (appoint or a view of your organ, nominate and revol	vr been nted by the nisation data. (ce roles, as
In the list of your	NAME 🍝	PIC 🔷	VAT 🗘	STATUS 🗘	ACTIONS 🗘
organisations, you can use the	Sciant Associates Ltd. 949682	381 BG01234	156 DECLA	ARED VO	MO
View Proposals action button in case you have draft or submitted proposals for that	Showing 1 to 1 of 1 entries.				1 NEXT \rightarrow
organisation.	Do you want to continu	e the registration o	f your organisati	on to receive a P	IC?
In this visual example, the registration process for the organisation in the list is not yet complete, so the system provides an option to continue the	If you started the registration of your organisation has not recein Organisations. Please continue check the information that will	of your organisation in the ved a PIC number yet - y its registration by clicking be necessary for the regis	Commission register s ou will not be able to s on the button that lea tration in the user man REGISTRATION	some time ago, but did see it above in the sec ds you to the registrat nual.	l not finalise it - tion My ion tool. You may
organisation registration process.	5		HORIZON 2020 R	ESEARCH ON EUROPA	CORDIS OLAF
	© E	uropean Communities			

Participant Portal: The MY PROPOSALS Page After Login

After you log in, you will be able to use your personalised MY AREA tab, where you can access your Proposals – drafts or submitted ones. The visual example below shows a proposal list with two draft proposals:

R	RESEARCH & II	NNOVATION	(A-Z) Si	itemap About this site	Contact Legal Notice	English 💌
European Commission P	articipant Portal					
European Commission > Research & Inno	ovation > Participant Portal	> My Proposals	0			
MY AREA HOME FUNDING OPPORT	TUNITIES HOW TO PART	ICIPATE EXPERTS	SUPPORT -		. 174	AN TERZIEV 🔻
My Organisation(s) My Proposal(s)	My Proposals				H2020 ONLINE A	MANUAL
My Project(s)	This page provides a	ist of all proposals rela	ating to you as a pa	rticipant, as follows:		
My Notification(s) My Expert Area	proposals you have proposals you have you can view, edit or of the relevant call.	a initiated or submitted a contributed to as a p download your draft o	as a Coordinator/P roject participant r submitted proposa	Principal Investigator, o Ils, depending on the pi	r roposal status and the	deadline
proposal will have a specific set of action buttons available depending on its state, as described in the LEGEND area above the list.	To start preparing a n for, and enter the elec LEGEND ED Ed	ew proposal, go to Fur ctronic submission it Draft VD View Draft	nding Opportunities, system.	to the page of the call	or topic that you want	to apply
	Show 10 💌 entrie	5			Search	
	PROGRAM CAL	C FUNDING C SCHEME	PROPOSAL ID A	CRONYM STATUS	☆ REMAININ G TIME	ACTIONS
	H2020 H2020- EUJ-20	14	SEP-2101424 SA 22	Draft	34	
	H2020 H2020- EUJ-20	14	SEP-2101425 AS 43	GD Draft	34	
	Showing 1 to 2 of 2 en	tries.		-	- PREVIOUS 1	NEXT →

APPENDIX A: COMPATIBILITY & TROUBLESHOOTING YOUR SYSTEM CONFIGURATION

Compatibility

The electronic submission system of the European Commission is a web application, so you will need a working Internet connection to use it. Although the system has been tested with a set of typical reference configurations, it is not guaranteed that the system will be fully functional on your computer. The system provides a diagnostic window that will warn you about some possible incompatibilities.

To use the electronic submission system, ensure that your computer configuration complies with the following mandatory system requirements:

Component	Mandatory requirements
Adobe Reader	Version X or above, all previous reader installations must be removed prior to installing the latest version
Internet connection	ADSL Line, 512 Kbps or faster
Memory	RAM – 512 Kbytes of more
Screen resolution	Minimum 1024 x 768 of higher
JavaScript	JavaScript must be enabled
Cookies	Cookies must be enabled
Pop-up blocker	No effect
User ID	Valid user ID with the Commission (ECAS account)

The following table shows the operating systems and browsers actively supported by the system, as well as the Adobe Reader version required for each configuration.

Operating system	Internet browser	Adobe Pro or Acrobat Reader
Windows XP	Internet Explorer 8 & 9 Firefox 3.6 or above Google Chrome 10 or above Opera 10.6 & 11 Safari 5	Version XI or above
Windows Vista & 7	Internet Explorer 8 & 9 Firefox 3.6 or above Chrome 10 or above	Version XI or above
Mac OSX	Safari 5 or above	Version 10.1.3 and above
	Note: The system is best viewed with Mozilla Firefox 3 and abo	ove

Note: The use of mobile devices for online submission of research proposals is not supported.

Troubleshooting Your System Configuration

The primary compatibility issue concerns the seamless viewing and editing of the pdf forms inside your

browser window once you click on edit forms. Your browser will either display the forms inside its window or it will download them in your download folder (after downloading them, you will be able to open them in Acrobat Reader X or XI and complete them. Whether you work on the form inside your browser window or with Acrobat Reader after downloading them, the end result is the same. In either case, as described in User Action 4 above, once you click on Validate, the form will perform a check and provide you the corresponding notices, and when you click on Save and Close the information will be sent to and saved on the Commission's servers. REMEMBER: *THE DOWNLOADED FORM HAS A TIME STAMP FROM THE COMMISSION'S SERVERS AND IT EXPIRES* **13 HOURS AFTER IT IS DOWNLOADED** .IF YOU DO NOT COMPLETE, SAVE AND CLOSE THE FORM WITHIN 13 HOURS, YOU MUST DELETE THE OLD FORM, RETURN TO THE WIZARD AND DOWNLOAD A NEW COPY OF THE FORM.

	CREATE DRAFT	PARTIES	EDIT PROPOSAL	SUBMIT
Step 5	Edit Proposals' Forms	•	•	
Edit Proposal	In this step you can edit the admir	nistrative forms and upload	l the proposal itself. 🔞	
	WARNING: This proposal contain	ns changes that have not y	et been submitted	
*	Administrative Forms			
LCT-02-2014	Edit will open the forms in Adobe	e Reader. 😨		
EIA	edit	forms view history	print preview	
April 2014 17:00:00 Brussels Local Time	Part B and Annexes			
58 days left until closure	In this section you may upload th requested attachments.	e technical annex of the pr	oposal (in PDF format only)	and any other
Acronym ID PIC Contact				
Acronym	download templates			
Creatives	Technical Annex upload Section 1-3	8Part_BTemplates	ection_1-3EDITED.pdf de	lete 🥑 😨
Configuration OK	Technical Annex upload Section 4-5	8Part_BTemplatenk	s_CLEAN_section_4-5.pdf de	lete 🥑 ?
You're using Firefox 17 on Windows. Adobe Reader (version 11,0,5,3) is installed.				
For more information, please consult the User Guide.				
			< Step 4 - Parties	validate submit
done 🛞 Vers	ion: 20140122-1403 - Service Desk: DIGI	T-EFP7-SEP-SUPPORT@ec.eu	ropa.eu (+32 (2) 29 92222)	

The bottom left side of your wizard will indicate whether your system is configured to display the form inside your browser window:



Configuration OK: your system meets the minimum requirements and all PDF forms will open within the browser.

Configuration unconfirmed: your browser does not meet the minimum requirements and all PDF forms will be downloaded and open offline, outside your browser.

What to do if your system configuration is not OK?

- Make sure you have the correct version of Adobe Reader installed (see compatibility section above) and is set up as your default PDF handler. If you have an older version of Adobe Reader, uninstall it before installing the new version. To download Adobe Reader go to <u>Adobe Reader Download</u> and follow the instructions.
- 2. Most browsers have their own built-in PDF viewers. If your browser's built-in PDF viewer is not allowing you to properly open, view and edit the Administrative form in step 5, it is recommended that you disable your browser's PDF viewer and instead use the corresponding Adobe Reader plug-in. This way you will be able to open up, view and edit the form within the browser. As stated above, you can also complete the form offline and then save it to the Commission servers,.

The following instructions explain how to enable the Adobe Reader plug-in for the supported browsers and operating systems.

On Windows

Internet Explorer 7, 8 and 9

The steps to enable the Adobe PDF plug-in vary depending on your version of Internet Explorer.

- Select Tools and click on Manage Add-ons.
 - (Or select Tools > Internet Options, click the Programs tab, then click Manage Add-ons.)
- In the Show pop-up menu, select All Add-ons.
 - o (In some versions the option reads: Add-ons That Have Been Used by Internet Explorer.)
- Scroll to the section of add-ons for Adobe Systems and select Adobe PDF Reader.
- If the status of Adobe PDF Reader is set to Disabled, click the Enable button.
- Click OK to confirm.

Firefox 3.6 up to 18

- Select Tools and click on Options.
- Click the General tab, then click Manage Add-ons.
- Click the Plug-ins tab (purple/blue icon). (The layout of this dialog box differs depending on the version.)
- Find and select Acrobat or Adobe Reader:
- If the Disable button is displayed (as shown above), the add-on is enabled and no action is required.
- If the Enable button is displayed, click Enable.

Firefox 19 and above

Please note that Firefox 19 and above has a built-in PDF viewer. You will need to enable the Adobe PDF reader plugin.

- Click on Tools and then click on Options
- Select Applications
- In the Content Type column, find Adobe Acrobat Document and click on it to select it
- In the Action column, click on the corresponding drop-down arrow and select "Use Adobe Acrobat (in Firefox)".

ptions				-			X	
		页				÷		
General	Tabs	Content	Applications	Privacy	Security	Advanced		
Search							٩	
Content T	уре		^ A	tion				
3GPP2	Movie (vi	deo/3gpp2)	<u>**</u>	Use QuickTi	ime Plug-in	7.7.4 (in Firef.		
AAC au	udio (audi	o/mp4)		Use QuickTi	ime Plug-in	7.7.4 (in Firef.		
AAC au	udio (audi	o/x-m4a)		Use QuickTi	ime Plug-in	7.7.4 (in Firef.	. E	
AAC audio (protected)			**	🚆 Use QuickTime Plug-in 7.7.4 (in Firef 💷				
AAC audio book			**	Use QuickTi	ime Plug-in	7.7.4 (in Firef.	.	
AC3 Audio				Use QuickTi	ime Plug-in	7.7.4 (in Firef.	.	
🔁 Adobe Acrobat Document				Use Adobe	Acrobat (in	Firefox) 🔻	-	
🐻 Adobe Acrobat Forms Document (a			nent (a 🚆	Use Adobe	Acrobat (in	Firefox)		
🛃 Adobe Acrobat Forms Document (a			nent (a 🚞	Use Adobe	Acrobat (in	Firefox)		
💿 Adobe Acrobat XML Data Package F			ckage F 🚆	Use Adobe	Acrobat (in	Firefox)		
AMC Movie			-	Use QuickTi	ime Plug-in	7.7.4 (in Firef.		
AMR Audio		#	Use QuickTi	ime Plug-in	7.7.4 (in Firef.			
				ОК	Cancel	<u>H</u> elp		

Google Chrome

Google Chrome uses the Chrome PDF Viewer as the default application to open PDF files. In order for the system to open up the PDF eForms within the browser you must disable Chrome PDF viewer

- On your browser type **chrome://plugins**
 - the Plug-ins page will be displayed
- Disable Chrome PDF Viewer
- Enable Adobe Acrobat plug-in

Older Google Chrome version plugins page:

* Plug-ins × +	
← → C A (S) chrome://plugins	ک ک
For quick access, place your bookmarks here on the bookmarks bar. Import bookmarks now	
Plug-ins	
Plug-ins (7)	🕀 Details
Flash (2 files) - Version: 11.0.1.152 Shockwave Flash 11.0 r1 <u>Disable</u>	
Java (2 files) - Version: 6.0.290.11 NPRuntime Script Plug-in Library for Java(TM) Deploy <u>Disable</u>	
Adobe Acrobat - Version: 9.4.5.236 Adobe PDF Plug-In For Firefox and Netscape "9.4.5" Disable	
Remoting Viewer Disable	
Native Client	
Disable	
Chrome PDF Viewer (Disabled) Enable	
Default Plug-in - Version: 1 Provides functionality for installing third-party plug-ins <u>Disable</u>	

Latest Google Chrome version plugins page:

🔹 Plug-ins	× PP My Proposals - Research P ×	
$\leftarrow \ \Rightarrow \ C$	Chrome://plugins	
Plug-ins (15)		
Adobe Flash Shockwave Fl	Player (2 files) - Version: 11.7.700.203 ash 11.7 r700	
<u>Disable</u>	Always allowed	
Windows Me	dia Player - Version: 1.0.0.8	
<u>Disable</u>	Always allowed	
Chrome Remo This plugin al	o <mark>te Desktop Viewer</mark> Iows you to securely access other computers that have been shared with you. To use this plugin you n	nust first insta
<u>Disable</u>	Always allowed	
Microsoft Off Office Author	ice (2 files) - Version: 14.0.4730.1010 ization plug-in for NPAPI browsers	
<u>Disable</u>	Always allowed	
QuickTime Pla The QuickTime	ayer (7 files) - Version: 7.7.3 (1680.64) e Plugin allows you to view a wide variety of multimedia content in Web pages. For more information,	visit the <u>Quic</u>
<u>Disable</u>	Always allowed	
Native Client		
Disable	Always allowed	
Chrome PDF	Viewer (Disabled)	
<u>Enable</u>	Always allowed	
Adobe Reade Adobe PDF PI	er - Version: 10.1,4.38 <u>Download Critical Security Update</u> ug-In For Firefox and Netscape 10.1.4	
<u>Disable</u>	Always allowed	
Google Upda	te - Version: 1.3.21.145	
<u>Disable</u>	Always allowed	
Java(TM) (2 fi Next Generati	iles) - Version: 6.0.370.6 <u>Download Critical Security Update</u> ion Java Plug-in 1.6.0_37 for Mozilla browsers	

Safari 5

- Choose Action menu > Preferences and click Security. (The Action menu is near the upper-right corner of the Safari window, and looks like a gear.)
- Make sure that "Enable plug-ins" checkbox is selected

Safari will by default display PDF files using the Adobe Reader plug-in.

Security	23
General Appearance Bookmarks Tabs RSS AutoFill Security Privacy Extensions Advanced	
Fraudulent sites: 🗹 Warn when visiting a fraudulent website	
Web content: 🗹 Enable plug-ins	
🗹 Enable Java	
🗷 Enable JavaScript	
Block pop-up windows	
Ask before sending a non-secure form to a secure website	
	?

Opera 19

The latest Opera version will not display the pdf forms inside the browser. It will automatically download them in your download folder. You will need to open and work on them using the Adobe Reader or Adobe Pro application. When you are ready to click on the embedded Validate Form link or on the embedded Save and Close link, make sure your computer is connected to the internet, so that the information can be automatically validated or uploaded and saved to the Commission's servers.

On OS X

In OS X, the latest versions of Adobe software, Acrobat 10.1.x or XI and Reader 10.1.x or XI support viewing PDF files only inside the Safari browser. Other browsers, such as Firefox, Chrome and Opera, are not supported. We suggest you use Safari.

If Safari does not display pdf forms in the browser window, uninstall all older versions of Adobe Reader and <u>download</u> the most recent one. First close Safari and then install Reader. Launch Safari and you ought to be able to open the pdf files inside the Safari window. If you install Adobe Reader 10.1.x without first closing Safari, Safari will not display the pdf file inside its browser window until it is re-launched. For further help, please see <u>http://helpx.adobe.com/acrobat/kb/troubleshoot-safari-plug-acrobat-x.html</u>

These are the respective displays on the bottom left side of your wizard window for Firefox, Chrome, Opera and Safari



The PDF viewer browser plug-ins for Firefox, Chrome and Opera will not work because the form format is not supported by the plug-ins, and it will not display. These browsers will automatically download the form to your download folder and you will be able to complete it offline.

Troubleshooting Document Structure

After downloading the submitted proposal, you may receive a message such as: "The European Commission digital signature (eReceipt) of the submitted proposal is not validated."

The following procedure is only applicable for Windows operating systems

After downloading the submitted proposal:

- Click once on the signature located at the table of contents page
- Click on 'Signature Properties...' in the Signature Validation Status window



• In the Signature Properties window click on ' Show Signer's Certificate...'

• Select 'Trust' tab and Click on 'Add to Trusted Identities' in the Certificate Viewer window

Baltimore CyberTrust Postecom CS3	Summary	Details	Revocation	Trust	Policies	Legal Notice
<u> (</u> ereceipt.efp7.e	Trust S This c V X	ettings ertificate Sign doo Certify d Execute certified	is trusted to: cuments or da locuments dynamic cont document	ta ent that	is embedd	ed in a
	×	Execute a certifie Perform printing	high privilege d document privileged sys file access, et Add to True	JavaScri tem ope tc.) sted Cert	pts that are rations (ne ificates	e embedded in stworking,
The selected certificate P	as errors: Not	time val	id current time:	<i>E</i> .		

• Click on 'OK' to confirm in the Acrobat Security pop-up window



• The Import Contact Settings window should be displayed



• Tick off the 'Use this certificate as a trusted root' and click OK (note: ticking off 'Certified documents' is not required)

• In the Signature Properties window click first on 'Validate Signature' and then on 'Close'



• The Commission digital signature or eReceipt should be validated



APPENDIX B: ECAS REGISTRATION

To use the online Submission Service, you need to have a personal user account with the European Commission Authentication Service (ECAS).

To register to ECAS, follow the instructions below.

Note: For additional information, see the <u>H2020 Online Manual</u>.

ECAS registration steps:

1. Go to the Participant Portal: <u>http://ec.europa.eu/research/participants/portal/desktop/en/home.html</u>

	RESEARCH	& INNOVATI	(A-Z) Site	map About this site Contac	t Legal Notice English 💌
European Commission	Participant Port	al			
European Commission > Resear	rch & Innovation > Participant	Portal > Home		<u> </u>	
HOME FUNDING	G OPPORTUNITIES HOW TO	PARTICIPATE EXPE	RTS SUPPORT -		🔒 LOGIN 👗 REGISTER
				Horizon 202	20 Funding tarting from 1/1/2014
	On this site you	can find and secure fu	nding for research & innov	ation projects under the foll	lowing EU programmes:
	2014-20202007-2013	7th research framewor	n and innovation framewor k programme (FP7) and Co	к programme ompetitiveness & Innovation	Programme (CIP)
	Non-registere	ed users	Register	ed users	
	 search for fu read the H20 legal docume check if an o contact our second contact o	inding 120 Online Manual & dou ents irganisation is already r support services or chec	 submit sign th manag egistered ck our FAQs 	your proposal e grant e your project throughout it:	s lifecycle
					i
WHAT'S NEW?	FUNDING OPPORTUNITIES	HOW TO PARTICIPATE	WORK AS AN EXPERT	MY PERSONAL AREA	INFORMATION AND SUPPORT
			HORIZO	DN 2020 RESEARCH ON EL	JROPA CORDIS OLAF
		© European C	communities		

- 2. Click REGISTER
- 3. The ECAS Sign Up screen will open:

\circ	EUROPE (ECAS)	AN COMMISSION AUTHENTICATION SERVICE
European Commission	External	
OPA > Authentication Service	s> Sign Up	
		🤱 Login 🛛 New password 🛛 Sign Up 🖉 He
		Is the selected domain correct? External Chang
Sign Up		
Help for external users		
The providence of the second	Choose a username	
	First name *	
	Last name *	
	E-mail *	
	Confirm e-mail *	
	E-mail language *	English (en)
	Enter the code *	
		Privacy statement: by checking this box, you acknowledge that you have read and understood the <u>privacy statement</u> *
		Sign up

All fields in the registration form are mandatory.

- 4. Optionally, click the link [Help for external users] if you need additional instructions.
- 5. Choose a username and enter it in the **Choose a username** field.
- 6. Enter your **First name** and your **Last name**.
- 7. Enter your **E-mail**. When registration is complete, a confirmation email will be sent to this email address.
- 8. Enter your e-mail address again in the **Confirm e-mail** field. You will receive an error message and you will have to enter the email again if it does not match the e-mail address provided in Step 3.
- 9. Select the **E-mail language** that you want the European Commission to use for e-mail communication with you.
- 10. In the **Enter the code** field, enter the five characters shown in the blue box above the field. For security reasons, the characters are not displayed clearly and may not be copied from the blue box.

If you cannot read the characters in the blue box or if you enter them but you receive an error message, try the following:

- a. Click ^{CD} to reload a different character combination and enter it in the **Enter the code** field.
- b. Click (1) to hear an audio recording of the characters. You will need to use your computer speakers or headphones make sure you have turned the volume on to a comfortable volume level.

- 11. Click the <u>privacy statement</u> link under the **Enter the code** field and read it in the new window that opens. If you agree with it, close the privacy statement window and check the respective check box under the **Enter the code** field.
- 12. Click Sign up
- 13. If you have not provided the required information in the fields, or you have entered a wrong code or an email address in an incorrect email format, the system will prompt you to go back and correct the errors before you can sign up.
- 14. On success, the ECAS system will display the following message to confirm that your account has been created:



15. The system will send you a confirmation email to the email address you provided in the sign-up form. Open the email and click on the activation link provided to activate your account. The link will expire after 90 minutes.

Note: Make sure to check your spam folder if you cannot find the confirmation email in your inbox.

- 16. The system will open another screen where you can enter the password for your account. Enter a valid password following the instructions on the screen.
- 17. The system will then confirm the creation of your account with the following message:



18. To log in with your new account, go back to the Participant Portal:

(<u>http://ec.europa.eu/research/participants/portal/desktop/en/home.html</u>) and click enter the system.
GLOSSARY

Term	Definition
Applicant	 Generic term for any person/organisation that prepares and/or submits a proposal. Two types of applicants can be discriminated: The proposal coordinator The partner The "Proposal Coordinator" role is allowed to register and to submit the proposal, while the 'Partner' role is only involved in the preparation of the proposal. Synonyms: Partner
Beneficiary	A beneficiary or "beneficiary of the European Union funds" refers to the legal entity that signs a grant agreement and/or procurement contract (i.e. the grant beneficiary and/or contractor) with an "entity managing EU funds". Depending on the management mode this entity may be the European Commission, a beneficiary country, an international organisation, or a Community or national agency. Subcontractors or suppliers as well as partners/consortia members of the beneficiaries are not concerned. (http://ec.europa.eu/europeaid/work/funding/beneficiaries_en.htm) Synonyms: participant Broader term: partner
Call	An invitation to third-parties to submit a proposal in order to get funding. Calls cover specific research areas and are always issued in the context of a Work Programme. All calls are announced in the EU's Official Journal and are published on the FP7 section of the CORDIS website. Call for proposals The European Commission publishes calls for proposals. It is an official invitation to submit a project proposal for a specific area of a framework programme by a specific date. Calls specify very clearly what is required in the Work Programme. Calls for proposals are officially published in the European Union Official Journal and on participant portal.
Consortium agreement	The Consortium Agreement provides the legal basis for the internal relationship and responsibilities among the beneficiaries, and must be consistent with the provisions of the Grant Agreement. The Consortium Agreement is mandatory for all projects unless specifically excluded by the terms of the call for proposals. Such agreements do not affect the rights of the Commission/REA arising from the Grant Agreement and the corresponding obligations of the beneficiaries vis-à-vis the Commission/REA
Consortium	 A Consortium is a group of Participants, one of which is identified as the Proposal Coordinator in the proposal submission. The Consortium is represented to the Commission by a nominated Proposal Coordinator Contact, who is normally an employee of the Proposal Coordinator Organisation but who acts on behalf of all for most aspects of the project. In the context of a running project, the following constraints shall hold: There shall be exactly one Proposal Coordinator Contact within each Project Consortium. The Coordinator Contact identified in the Project proposal shall be a person, nominated from within the Coordinator Organisation, to be recognised by the Commission as the primary point of contact between it and the Consortium. Each Partner in the Consortium shall nominate a Partner Contact as its representative in the Project, who shall also be identified to the Commission. LEARs in the Consortium may revoke the Partner Contact representing their organisation in the Project.
Deadline	For each particular call, this is the moment after which proposals cannot be submitted to the Commission. At this point the Submission system closes for the respective call. Deadlines are fixed and strictly enforced.

Term	Definition
ECAS	The European Commission's Authentication Service - it is the system for logging in to a whole range of web sites and online services run by the European Commission. Once you use ECAS to log in to a Commission website, you will not need to identify yourself again for other Commission websites until you browser session expires.
Entry into force date	It is the date when the grant agreement enters into force. In general, this is the date when the last party has signed the grant (it can be the coordinator or most commonly the Commission).
ERC	European Research Council
Ethics issues	Ethics issues are to be addressed by project proposals that involve the collection/experimentation with humans (including clinical trials), and/or human tissue, the collection or processing of personal data, human surveillance and intervention of any kind of experimentation with animals, genetic information, etc. Proposals that raise research ethics issues or those that do not address them adequately are usually identified by the scientific evaluation as needing additional attention by an Ethics Screening and/or Ethics Review Panel (ethics screening and ethics review are parts of the ethics review process). Ethics in FP7 is important throughout the project lifecycle, from the concept and the initial design until the dissemination of results. If there are ethics issues associated with or raised by a project, the applicants must describe how these will be dealt with in Annex I to Grant Agreement.
Finalize GPF	 For the GPFs to be finalised and correctly sent to the Commission/REA, three forms have to be signed manually: One Form A2.5, 'Our Commitment,' per beneficiary has to be signed by the authorised representatives of the coordinator and each participant; Form A2.6, 'Data Protection and Coordination Role,' has to be signed by the coordinator's authorised representative; Form A4, 'Bank Account,' must bear the bank stamp and the signature of the bank representative (if the account is not already validated by the Commission/REA, which will be checked by the Project Officers) as well as the account holder's signature, with date. The finalised GPFs are submitted to the Project Officer in one unbound copy on white paper with original signatures.
Host Organisation	The target organization of a Marie Currie (MC) proposal, an institution where the work described in the proposal will take place, and the organization that will be receiving funding associated with the proposal. (Also see: Fellow)
Indirect cost method ICM	It is the method for determining indirect costs (the so-called ICM). Please note that the choice of an ICM for a legal entity depends on its legal status and accounting methodology and it is usually valid for the entire duration of FP7. In FP7 all departments, faculties or institutes which are part of the same legal entity must use the same system of cost calculation (unless a special clause providing for derogation for a particular department/institute is included in the GA). The choice of the ICM should be carefully assessed. If a change of the ICM is required, it will have an effect only on future grants with the exception of the correction of mistakes, further details are given in the Amendments Guide. (ftp://ftp.cordis.europa.eu/pub/fp7/docs/amendments-ga_en.pdf).
Legal Entity Appointed Representative <i>LEAR</i>	The LEAR is a person nominated in each legal entity participating in Research (H2020, FP7) programmes. This person is the contact for the Commission related to all questions on legal status. He/she has access to the online database of legal entities with a possibility to view the data stored on his/her entity and to initiate updates and corrections to these data. The LEAR receives a Participant Identification Code (PIC) from the Commission (see below), and distributes this number within his/her organisation.
Negotiation meeting	Depending on the size and nature of the project, meetings between the Consortium and the Commission/REA may, or may not, be required. This is decided by the Project Officer in charge of the project negotiations and may be communicated to the Consortium in the Negotiation Mandate, in which details on the date, time, address, duration and draft agenda of the first meeting may be outlined. [EC-GUIDE-NEGO]

Term	Definition
Operator	Internal user responsible for the management of the application and of the operational call.
Panel	SEP definition
	A panel consists in a group of persons (experts and evaluation staff), a group of proposals and a set of evaluation activities. The objective of a is to provide some output that is specific for the type of the panel.
	Sygma definition A panel defines a group of proposals following different criteria (e.g., disciplines, thematic areas). Panels are specified in evaluation phase. Each panel contains a set of proposals. Each proposal is contained in one and only one original panel. The budget of a call is split to the original panels of the call. The main task of the panel is to examine and compare the consensus reports in a given area, to check on the consistency of the marks and comments applied during the consensus discussions and, where necessary, propose a new set of marks or revision of comments. [EC-GUIDE-EVALRULES]
Part A	This is the part of a proposal deals with administrative data. It is completed using the web-based electronic Submission system.
Part B – Template download and submission	This is the part of a proposal that explains the work that must be carried out and the roles and aptitudes of the participants in the consortium. This part is uploaded to the electronic Submission system as a PDF file.
Part B template	The template documents are intended to provide you the topics that you will need to expand upon as part of the supplied by the Commission and are downloadable in step 4 of the Submission wizard. They are in RTF format consisting of a template of all chapter headings, forms and tables required to prepare a proposal Part B.
Participant	The Participant (short form of 'Participating Legal Entity') is a legal entity that has registered, or has a registration application pending, to participate in current or future proposals for research projects. A Participant must be validated (corporate) as a legal entity, uniquely identified within the Participant database by its Participant Identification Code (PIC). Participant registration is made through the <u>Beneficiary Register</u> on the Participant Portal (which opens the Unique Registration Facility - URF) and subject to a rigorous validation process that may last several weeks. Ideally, a LEAR is identified to be responsible for provision and maintenance of the Participant's legal and financial data. However, until a LEAR is identified and validated, this data may be maintained by the person who initially registered the organisation. Also named 'Proposal Project Participant' an indirect action (i.e. a specific FP7 project undertaken by one or more participants) and having the rights and obligations defined by the Grant Agreement entered into with the European Commission (on behalf of the European Union). [from the Guide to Intellectual Property Rules for FP7 projects v.3)]
Partner	Individuals and legal entities such as companies, consortia, universities, university departments, etc. are allowed to submit proposals requesting financial support. The 'Partner' assists the Proposal Coordinator in preparing the proposal. To avoid the existing confusion, a difference is made between a Partner Contact and a Partner Organisation. The Partner Contact is either an individual or empowered individual of an organisation having the responsibility to assist the Proposal Coordinator in the submission of a proposal. The Partner Organisation is the organisation to which the Partner Contact belongs or is linked to, and/or that has given the Partner Contact the responsibility to assist in the preparation of a proposal. Any company, university, research centre, organisation or individual, legally established in any country, who participates in a collaborative project (known as an indirect action) provided that the minimum conditions laid down in the rules for participation in a research programme have been met, including any additional conditions laid down by specific programmes or individual work programmes. E.g., Beneficiary, 3rd party, researcher, principal investigator (for ERC projects)

Term	Definition
Participant Identification Code PIC	Organisations participating in Research (H2020, FP7) programmes are assigned Participant Identification Codes (PIC). The possession of a PIC enables organisations to take advantage of the Unique Registration Facility (via the <u>Beneficiary Register</u> on the Participant Portal) and to identify themselves in all transactions related to Research (H2020, FP7) proposals and grants.
Participant Portal PP	The Research and Innovation Participant Portal is the single entry point for interaction with the research Directorates-General of the European Commission, it hosts a full range of services that facilitate the monitoring and the management of proposals and projects throughout their lifecycle, including calls for proposals, and access to the submission and evaluation of proposals service. If you want to participate in a project proposal, your organisation needs to be registered with the Commission. Registration is available from the Participant Portal <u>Beneficiary Register</u> page where you can check if your organisation is already registered; if not, you can start the registration process on the same page and you will be redirected to the Unique Registration Facility (URF) to complete the process. The same process applies for beneficiary registration data updates – you access your organisation from the Participant Portal My Organisations page and from there you can go to the URF system to update your organisation data.
	 Manual available from the Participant Portal): the checks carried out on the information you provide on registering appointing a representative (LEAR) the checks that may be carried out on your organisation's financial viability
Project start date	The relevant provisions of the Grant Agreement determine the start date of the project. This may be the first day of the month following the entry into force of the Grant Agreement, a specific fixed date as negotiated or a date to be notified by the coordinator within [x] months from entry into force of the Grant Agreement. Where the Consortium requires a specific fixed start date for the project that precedes the entry into force of the Grant Agreement, full details regarding the justification for the request should be given in writing to the Project Officer prior to the finalisation of Annex I to the Grant Agreement and of the GPFs. The Commission/REA may refuse this request if no sufficient and acceptable justification is provided.
Proposal	A set of documents submitted by third-parties in response to a particular call, in an effort to get funded by the EC after evaluation. The main elements of a proposal are the administrative forms and the proposal text. Proposal is a proposed project. Proposals are submitted following a call for proposals by consortium/partners with the goal to be selected and funded by the Commission. Proposal In order to get EC funding for a project, applicants have to write a complete and detailed proposal describing the objectives, planned activities and relevance with the corresponding Call's Activity(-ies). Proposals are individually evaluated by a team of independent experts. Only the very best project proposals will get funding. A description of the planned research activities, information on who will carry them out, how much they will cost, and how much funding is requested" [from an FP7 guide for applicants]
Proposal Coordinator	Individuals and legal entities such as companies, consortia, universities, university departments, etc. are allowed to submit proposals requesting financial support. The 'Proposal Coordinator' leads the submission process of the proposal and is the only applicant recognised by the Commission.

Term	Definition
	To avoid the existing confusion, a difference is made between a Proposal Coordinator Contact and a Proposal Coordinator Organisation. The Proposal Coordinator Contact is either an individual or empowered individual of an organisation having the responsibility to request financial support via the submission of a proposal. The Proposal Coordinator Organisation is the organisation to which the Proposal Coordinator Contact belongs or is linked to, and/or that has given the Proposal Coordinator Contact the responsibility to submit a proposal to request financial support. The coordinator is a specific role of a beneficiary. The coordinator is the main driver and responsible for the project and normally it is the one communicating directly with the Commission. The coordinator submits the periodic reports and requests for amendments. It is usually the beneficiary responsible for redistributing the funds among further beneficiaries participating in a common project. Also named 'Proposal Project Coordinator' Broader Term: Beneficiary, Partner
Proposal ID	An identifier assigned to a proposal after it was submitted. Once a proposal is funded, its Proposal ID becomes its Project ID
REA	Research Executive Agency
Redress Security aspect letter SAL	Redress procedure: "The initial information letter will indicate an address if an applicant wishes to submit a request for redress, if he or she believes that there have been shortcomings in the handling of the proposal in question, and that these shortcomings would jeopardise the outcome of the evaluation process. An internal evaluation review committee ("redress committee") will examine all such complaints. This committee does not itself evaluate the proposal. It is possible that the committee will recommend a re-evaluation of all or part of the proposal." [from an FP7 guide for applicants] Procedure initiated by the Proposal Coordinator if the Coordinator believes that there have been shortcomings in the handling of the proposal. Upon arrival of a redress complaint, the EC checks if the evaluation procedure was correct, if the rules have been respected, and if – legally – the evaluation was fair. If this is not the case, a redress may lead to a re-evaluation of the proposal. Security Aspects Letter (SAL)': "a set of special contractual conditions, issued by the contracting authority, which forms an integral part of a classified contract involving access to or generation of EU classified information, and that identifies the security requirements or those elements of the classified
	contract requiring security protection", as defined in section 27 of Commission Decision 2001/844/EC, ECSC, Euratom In the case of a proposal involving classified information (background and/or foreground), a Security Aspect Letter (SAL) and its annexed Security Classification Guide (SCG) must be part of the proposal.
Security classification guide SCG	The SCG will cover: - The level of classification of background and foreground; - Which participant will have access to what information; In addition, the following documents will be requested: - A copy of the Facility Security Clearances (FSC) (or the FSC requests). The validity of the FSC will be checked by the European Commission' Security Directorate through the appropriate formal channel with the National Security Authorities (NSAs) involved; - Formal written authorization by the relevant security authorities to use the classified background;
Security considerations	Security issues may be an important component of the research proposal evaluation procedure, especially in the FP7 Security Topic. All proposals received by the Commission/REA should clearly describe the security issues raised by the proposal, if any, and how they will be addressed in order to be in conformity with national, European and international regulations. For further references see Appendix 4 in negotiation guidelines.

Term	Definition
	Synonym: security issues
Security considerations flag	 A security-sensitive RTD action is an action that may need to handle classified information. A "security considerations" flag will be associated with a proposal: when the applicant declares a proposal as sensitive; if the expert evaluators, the Commission, or members of the relevant "Programme Committee" (except for the Security Topic) detect or suspect any of the following conditions: Classified information is, or may be, used as background information Some foreground is planned to be classified Whenever a "security considerations" flag is associated with a proposal, the circumstances of the planned work will be further scrutinised according to the procedures for security scrutiny.
Security scrutiny	Special procedures will apply to security-related research, due to the sensitive nature of the subjects addressed, and the particular capability gaps that need to be addressed to protect Europe's citizens. RTD actions will be classified if they are considered as sensitive. These procedures will apply to all RTD actions under the theme 'Security' in the Specific Programme 'Co-operation'. They apply to other themes if so specified in the relevant call.
Special clause SC	A special clause is inserted in the grant agreement and is applicable where required. For example, when the use of embryo / human embryonic stem cells (hESC) is involved, an additional approval is needed (regulatory procedure laid down in Articles 5 and 7 of Decision 1999/468/EC) prior to the start of any work. A special clause needs to be inserted in the Grant Agreement relating to embryo / hESC use (special clause 14).
Stage	A sequence of a submission and an evaluation procedure.
	A call for proposals can follow a one-stage or two-stage procedure.
	For one-stage calls, proposals are directly evaluated after being submitted.
	For two-stage calls, the proposal coordinator submits a short proposal that is evaluated; successful proposals are invited to submit a full proposal. The number of stages in the procedure and the type of proposal that is to be expected for each stage are configurable items.
Step	A round in the evaluation procedure. The evaluation of a proposal might be performed in one or two (or even more) steps. A first evaluation step may be based on a limited set of evaluation criteria, while another subsequent step may be based on the remaining evaluation criteria.
Submission	The formal act to submit a proposal to the Commission via a web based application. Proposals can be modified and submitted several times as long as the call has not been closed. After call closure the submission is prohibited and proposals are locked. Eligible proposals are thereafter made available to the evaluation system.
SEP	Submission and Evaluation of Proposals
Unique Registration Facility (URF)	An electronic system that enables organisations to register their details once and then use this registration for one or more participations, thus eliminating the need to provide the same information for multiple proposal submissions. The Web interface of the URF is accessible from the Beneficiary Register page of the Participant Portal: http://ec.europa.eu/research/participants/portal/desktop/en/organisations/register.html URF also provides an organisation search tool where you can check if your organisation has already
	been registered as a participant.